
Lov1doV1, TeV1V1essee 

VV\0V1dt:iy, April 3, 2023 

Cov1rtviov1se AV1V1eX 

(p:OO pvn 

At'.iENVA 

1<.e13v1lt:ir VV\eetiVII'.) 

1) OpeV1iV10 of 'IV\eetiVl0, 1'led0e of Alle0it:iV1ce to tvie flt:i0 of t\tle lAVlited Stt:ites, IV1Voct:itioV1 

2) 12.oll ~II 

3) AdoptioVI of April 3, 2023 Cov1V1~ CovnvnissioVI A0eV1dt:i 

4) 1<.et:idiV1'3 t:iVld f\Cceptt1V1Ce of 'IV\t:ircvi G,, 202 3 Lov1doV1 Cov1V1~ CovnvnissioVI 'N'liV1v1tes 

15) GieV1ernl 1'v1~1ic CovnvneV1ts 

(p) 'IV\i:::1yor -1'v1ddy 1'ri:::1dsvii:::1w 

A. CoV1f1rvni:::1tioV1 for triV11<.ice - fiV1&1V1Ce "Director 

13. 13Mrds & Covnvnittees 

1) AppoiV1tvneV1t for Solid Wi:aste CovnvnissioVI 

c,. Opioid SettlevneV1t for Lov1doV1 Cov1V1ty 

V. --Proclt:ivni:atioVI - Tri:acy 131i:air 

E. --Procli:::1vni:atioV1 - KeV1V11.f l<.idiV113s 

f. --Proclt:ivni:atioVI - TeV1V1 essee VoV1or Services/ April N?ltioV1t:il VoV1&1te Life VV\oV1tV1 

1 



7-) Lov1i:fo11 Cbv111~ Eco110VYliC PevelopVY\e11t Execv1tive "Director - Jt1ck Qv1t1lls 

'o) Lov1do11 Cbv111~ 1'rocv1reVY\e11t "Director - W\t1tt Klei11sCV1VYlidt 

A. Ltm3e forVYltit priV1ter IMse reV1ewu1I for12.e0ister of l)e,e,ds (2.4VY10V1tlr1s tit$ 20C! 

VYlO\lltVl) 

13. Cbv1rtV1ov1se -Pviu1se, 2 reV10Vu1tioV1 pltiVIS t1V1d u1lternu1tes V1ot covered kiy -Are/codes reptiirs. 

Tottil cost of u1lterV1u1tes $ ,4Cl,4'o3 

A. CbV1sideru1tioV1 of recoVY1VY1eV1du1tioV1 to tipprove u1pplicMioV1/ u1cceptt1V1Ce of tvie, followiVIC:J 

0ru1V1ts: 
,. $4Cl,200 f'I 2023-2024 Litter G,ru1V1t - VIO VYltitcviiVIC) fv1V1ds 
2. $0, 0,400 f'I 202 3-2024 VG,A G,ru1V1t - V10 VYltitclriiVIC) f&\V1ds 
3. $,0,000 VOE 2023 G,ru1V1t - V10 VYltitcviiVIC) f&\V1ds 

A. CbV1sideru1tioV1 of recoVY1VY1eV1du1tioV1 to tipprove Stu1tv1tory 130V1d for tvie 'Director of 

Accov1V1ts t1V1d 13v1d0ets 

13. CbV1siderntioV1 of recoVY1VY1eV1dt1tioV1 to u1ckV1owled0e TCRS eVYlployer coV1triki&\tioV1 ru1te, 

effective J&\ly ,, 2023 

V. CbV1sideru1tioV1 of recoVY1VY1eV1dt1tioV1 to tipprove distriki&\tioVIS to tvie followiVIC) NoV1--Pro-At 
OrC)tiVliMtioVIS SerViVIC) Lov1doV1 Co&\V1ty, TeV1V1essee: 

1. Tellico Villu10e fire Vepu1rtVY1eV1t - $2 7-0,000 
2. 1'viilu1delpviiu1 fire Vepu1rtVY1eV1t - $00,000 
3. Tvie, frieV1ds of tvie Tellico Villu10e Likiru1ry - $70,000 
4. T e,l/ico 12.eservoir VevelopVY1eV1t AC)eV1cy - $20,000 
0. Lo&\doVI LD&\Vity Svieriff s Vepu1rtVY1eV1t 13eV1eVoleV1t f&\Vld - $20,000 
0. Vv1V1kit1rl2.oseV1wt1ld fov1V1dt1tioV1 - $20,000 
7. kiwt1V1is Cl&\ki of Tellico VilltiC)e - $'10,000 

E. CoV1siderntioV1 of u1pprovu1/ of liV1e u1dj&\stVY1eV1ts t1V1d/or recoVY1VY1eV1dt1tioV1 to tipprove 

u1VY1eV1dVY1eV1ts iVI tvie, followiVIC) f&\V1ds: 

1. LD&\Vity G,eV1ernl f&\Vld '101 
2. VrnC) Cl>V1trol f&\Vld 122 
3. Specitil 12.eWVl&\e fv1V1d - A12.1'A '12 t 
4. +ti0viwu1y Vepu1rtVY1eV1t f&\Vld 131 
0. G,eV1eru1/ Ctipittil 1'rojects f &\Vld 171 

f. Vistriki&\tioVI of VY10V1tvily reports 

2 



1 O) C.OV11V11issiovier - Adi::1V11 Wi::1ll e,r 

A. A<Adit U>VYlVYlitte,e, 12.esol<Atiovi 

13. 13ovids i::1vid Noti::1rie,s 
ti::1rol V. Avit\rloviy, 'Ivette K. Arviold, Ki::1t\rly E. fivi0er, t\rli::1rle,s A. +/i::1le,, W\i::11ii::1 Piovivie 

+/od0e, 12.\rlovidi::1 G,i::1il Kviittel, W\e,lissv1 A. Lv1wsovi, r't11AI t. W\ivi0ee III, 
Kristiviv1 f. W\ivi0e,e,, 12.<At\rl Elv1ivie, W\ivior, W\ist W\ivitovi, Jv1y W. W\orello 

3 



LoMdo~ CoM~t\.f Covnvnissio~ 

April 3, 2.D2.3 

~i~t1tes for Approvttl 

felm-1~~ 2.1, 2.02. 3 



LOUDON COUNTY COMMISSION 
LOUDON COUNIT, TENNESSEE 

Monday, March 6, 2023 
Courthouse Annex Building 

6P.M. 

REGULAR COMMISSION MINUTES 

DRAFT COPY 
Not Approved 

(1) l'•~lic+fo.rin~ Al<ESOLUTION Al"AENPING, Tl-/£ i'.ONING, W\A:r Of LOIAPON WI.ANT'/. 

(2.) Oponin~ of 
l'\ooiin~ 

(3) Tullwll 

(4) l\~ond~ 
A~optiovi 

(SJ l'Ain"tos 
l\pprovod 

TENNESSEE, 1'Ul<SUANT TO c+/A1'T82. SEVEN, §13-'MO';i Of T+/£ TEN NESS££ 
WPE ANNOTATE"P. TOl<Ei'.ONE f]2.0W\ v-2, G,ENtRAL WW\W\82.CTAL 
PIST\2.ICT TO"l<-1, SU13Ul<13AN-7<£5IPENTIAL PIST\2.ICT. LOU"DON WUNT'I 
TAX l"AA'P 020P, 1'Al<CH 011.00. LOCATE"D 210 +/ALL ST\2.££T LOU"DON WUNT'I, 
TN, SITUATEP IN T+/£ 2N"D LEG,ISLATIVE PIST\2.ICT 

Al<ESOLUTION Al"AENPING, T+/£ i'.ONING, l"AA:E Of LOIAPON WIANT'/. 
TENNESSEE, 1'Ul<SUANT TO c+/Al'TtR SEVEN, §13-'MO':i Of T+/£ TENNESSfE 
WP£ AN NOTATW. TOl<HONE f]2.0W\ A-1, AGi"l<IWL TUl<AL-f0\2.EST\2.'1 
"DIST\2.ICT TO v-2, G,ENtRAL WW\W\82.CIAL PIST\2.ICT. LOU"DON WUNT'I TAX 
W\A1' 044, 1'Al<CH 04'5.00 LOC,ATE"D AT 2'5\JO';i +/W'I 321, LOU"DON WUNT'I, TN, 
SITUATEP IN T+/£ 3w LEG,ISLATIVE PIST\2.ICT 

'BE ITl<EW\EW\1382.t"D tvitlt tvie 13Mrd of Covnvnissio11 of Lo1,1do11 C,o1,111-hj co11ve11ed i11 
re01,1l6lr sessio11 i11 Lo1,1do11, Te1111essee 011 tvie i;,t11 d6ly of l"A6lrcvi 2023. 
Covnvnissio11 CV16lirvn6l11 -l-/e11r-J CCAlle11 C6llled tvie vneeti110 to order 6lt G>:00 pvn. 

CovnV11issio11er Wviiifield ope11ed tvie Co1,111-hj Covnrnissio11 W\eetil'l0 l?y IMdi110 tvie 1'led0e of 
Alle0i6l11ce to tvie fl610 of tvie U11ited Sttites of Avneric6l, 6111d tvie11 0Me tvie i11voctltio11. 

Upo11 l<oll C6lll, tvie followi110 covnvnissio11ers were prese11t: CV16lse 1<6111dolpvi, 13ill G,e6lV11es, 
Willi61Vll Je111::i11s, l<oseV116lr-J Q1,1ille11, 13ill Stltterfield, G,6lr-J Wviitfield, -l-/e11r-J CCAlle11, Joe W\orriso11, 
V6111 SviMer, Ad6lVll W6lller (10) 

Also prese11t, W6lS tvie -l-/011ornl?le l"A6lyor 131,1ddy 13rndsvi6lw, "Director of Acco1,111ts 6111d l31,1d0ets, 
Trncy 13l6lir, I11teriV11 "Director of Acco1,111ts 6ll'ld l31,1d0ets, Eri11l<ice 6ll'ld 6111d Cviief PepCA-hj, 
T 61Vl1Vllie W61Vllpler. 

CoV11V11issio11 CV16lirVl16ll1 CCAl!e11 m,\CAested tvi6lt tvie W\6lrcvi G,, 202 3 6l1'.)e11d6l l?e 6ldopted. 
CoV11V11issio11 Je111::i11s vn6lde 6l V11otio11 to 6lccept tvie 6l1'.)e11d6l. CoV11V11issio11er Q1,1ille11 seco11ded tvie 
V11otio11. 

Upo11 Voice Vote, tvie vnotio11 1'ASS£P CA1'16ll'livno1,1sly. 

CoV11Vllissio11 CV16lirVl16ll1 CCAlle11 m,\CAested tvi6lt tvie fel?rn6lry G,, 202 3 Lo1,1do11 Co1,111-hj 
Covnrnissio11 W\eeti110 W\i111,1tes l?e 6lccepted. CoV11V11issio11er Wviitfield Vl16lde tvie vnotio11 to 6lCcept 
tvie rni111,1tes 615 writte11. CoV11V11issio11er G,e6lV11es seco11ded tvie V11otio11. . 

Upo11 Voice Vote, tvie V11otio11 1'ASS£P. 

(,;,J 6ionor~I ,,.~lie CoV11V11issio11 CV16lirVl16ll'I CCAlle11 C6llled to tvie floor tviose wvio si011ed CAP for G,e11ernl 1'1,1\?lic 
Ccmmonts CoV11V11e11ts. Tvie followi110 people spoke: 

StepV1e11 Eirnerss - Upd6lti110 S6lfe-hj 136lrrier System / G,CA6lrd 1<6lils 

1'6lt -l-/1,111ter - ArcVlives 

CoV11V11issio11 CVJ6lirVl16ll'I CCAlle11 C6llled 1?6lck to tvie floor Lo1,1do11 CoCA11-hj Codes £11forcerne11t 

"Director - Jim Je111::i11s re06lrdi110 tvie w11i110 resol1,1tio11s. CoV11V11issio11er 56ltterfield 

m\CAested tvi6lt we for00 6l seco11d re6ldi110 of tvie resol1,1tio11s si11ce tviey VJ6ld l?ee11 rMd 6ll'ld 

disc1,1ssed previoCAsly d1,1ri110 tvie 1'1,1\?lic +/e6lri110. 

1 



(?) lo•i•~ 
12.Gsolc..\tio\'1 -
210ti~11 
Stroot 

(BJ lo•i•~ 
12.esolt..1tio\'1 -
25BD5 tJw.i 
321 

('1) lo•i•~ 
"'R.esolt,ttio\'1 -
1'opl~r 
Spri•~s11.o~a 

(10) TN tJi~VJW~4 
s~fof<i (;irn•t 

Loudon County Commission Meeting Minutes, Monday, March 6, 2023 

Lot,1do11 C.Ot,111-hj C.Odes E11force1-ne11t "Director - Jivn Je111::i11s prese11ted to covnvnissio11: A 
1?.ESOLUTION AWIEN"DING, T+/E WNING, MM Of LOU"DON COUNT'/. 
TENN€SSEE, r'tJ12.SlAANT TO c+/Ar'Ttl<. SEVEN, §1'.3-1'-W'S Of T+/E T€NNESSEE 
WPE ANNOTATW. TOl?.HONE f\?.OW\ C-2., G,ENtl<.AL WW\W\l'W.CIAL 
"DISTRICT TOl?.-1, SUJ?l,W:1,AN-1?.'ESI"DENTIAL "DISTRICT. LOl,.\"DON Wl,.\NT'/ 
TAX WIAr' D2.0"D, r'Al?.CEL D11.DD. LOCATE"D 2. rD +/ALL STREET LOl,.\"DON Wl,.\NT'/, 
TN, SITlAATE"D IN T+/E 2.N"D LEG,ISLATIVE "DISTRICT 

C.Ovnvnissio11er Je111::i11s vnt1de t1 vnotio11 to t1pprove tvie M11i1113 resolt.\tio11 for tvie 2."" district. 
C.Ovnvnissio11er Qt,1ille,11 seco\'lded tvie vnotio11. 

C.Ovnvnissio11er CMlle,11 ct1lled for Voice Vote. 

l,.\pol'I Voice Vote tvie vnotiol'I r'ASSE"D m·w1ivnot,1Sl'j. (10/Dl 1?,ESOLUTION D3D<e2.3-A 

Lot,1do11 C.0£.111-hj C.Odes E11forcevne11t "Director - J1vn Je111::i11s prese11ted to covnvnissio11: A 
1?.ESOLUTION AMEN-PING, T+/E WNING, W\fil Of LO(J"DON COUNTY. 
TENNESSEE, r'tJ12.SlAANT TO c+/Ar'Tl'W. SEVEN, §13+1D'S Of T+/E T€NNESSEE 
COPE ANN OT AT@. TOl?.HONE f\?.OW\ A-1, A6fl2.IWLTtJ12.AL-f0RESTR'/ 
"DISTRICT TO C..--2., G,EN\'W.AL WW\W\l'W.C.IAL "DISTRICT. LOlA"DON Wl,.\NT'/ TAX 
MM D44, r'Al?.C.EL D45.DD LOCATE"D AT 2.'S'oD'S +/W'I 32.1, LOl,.\"DON Wl,.\NT'/, TN, 
SITlAATE"D IN T+/E 3'Rv LEG,ISLATIVE "DISTRic.T 

C.Ovnvnissio11er St1tter-Aeld vnt1de ti vnotio11 to t1pprove tvie c-011i1113 resol£.1tio11 for tvie, 3 rd 

district. C.Ovnvnissio11er Wvii-tfield seco\'lded tvie vnotio11. 

C.Ovnvnissio11er CMlle11 ct1lled for Voice Vote. 

l,.\pol'I Voice Vote tvie vnotio11 r'ASSE"D £.11'1t111ivno£.1Sl'j. (1D/D)1?:ESOLUTION D3QG>23-Jz 

W\t11jor 1'rt1dsvit1w prese11ted to C.0£.11'1-hj C.Ovnvnissio11 tvie 11ovni11Miol'I to t1ppoi11t Nt111C'i 
6,re1313 to tvie r'£.1kilic 1?.ecords C.Ovnvnissio11. 

C.Ovnvnissio11er Je111::i11s vnt1de t1 vnotiol'I to t1dd Nt111C'j G,re-1313 to tvie r't.\kilicl?.ecords C.Ovnvnissiol'I. 

C.Ovnvnissio11er~11dolpvi seco11ded tvie vnotiol'I. 

C.Ovnvnissio11er CMlle,11 ct1lled for Voice Vote. 

lApol'I Voice, Vote tvie vnotiol'I r'ASSE"D £.11-1t1l'livno£.1sl'j. (1D/D)1?:ESOLUTTON D3QG>23-C 

C.Ovnvnissio11 ct'lt1irvnt11-1 CMlle,r, presel'lted to covnvnissior, for t1pprovt1! tvie Te11Mssee +/i13viwt1'j 

St1fe,-hj G,rtil'lt Applictitior, witvi \'lo vntltcvii1113 f£.111ds. ($ 3D,DDD) ct'lief "Dep£.1-hj ~cvi fr'je Wt1S 
ct1lle,d to tvie floor to 13ive vnore i1-1forvnt1tio1-1 t1kio£.1t viow tvie 13rt11-1t vno11e'j wo£.1ld kie t.\sed for 

tvie Svieriff's office, · 

C.Ovnvnissior,er Wt1ller vnt1de t1 vnotio11 to t1pprove tvie G,rt11-1t re,;\£.1est. C.Ovnvnissio11er Wvii-tfjeld 

seco11ded tvie vnotior,. 

C.Ovnvnissio11 Gvit1irvnt11-1 CM lier, ct1lled for t11?.oll etill Vote. 

Tvie followil'l'3 covnvnissio11er voted A'IE: 

6,et1vnes, Je,r,l::i11s, Qt,1ille,1-1, St1tter-Aeld, Wvii-tf1eld, CMller,, W\orrisor,, Svit1ver, Wt1ller,~1-1dolpvi 

(10) 

Tvie vnotiol'I r'ASSE"D. (10/D) 

c11J oppositio• to C.Ovnvnissior,er Svit1Yer vnt1de t1 vnotior, for C.0£.111-hj C.Ovnvnissior, to ser,d ti letter of oppositior, to 

t~~r~~~; stt1te represer,ttltives 01-1 certt1il'I kiills. 

C.Ovnvnissio11er~1-1dolpvi secor,de,d tvie vnotio1-1. 

2 

DRAFT COPY 
Not Approved 



(12.) "Director of 
f\u:oi.o,ts ,rn.d 
'BuJ~ots 
I•fo•t to 
"Re.tire -
Trac~ 'Blair 

(13) /\RP/\ Fu•Js -
"District 1 
Seat/\ 

(14) f\1<1'/\ fu•Js 
"District 1-
Soat 'B 

Loudon County Commission Meeting Minutes, Monday, March 6, 2023 

Commissio11 c.\tli:iirmi:111 CMlle11 ci:illed for Voice Vote. 

Upo11 Voice Vote tVJe motio111'ASStD v111i:111imov1sl'j. (10/0) 

"Director of Accov111ts t111d 1'v1d0ets Trt1C'j 1,li:iir spoke for VJ er li:ist time i:is "Director of 

Accov111ts i:111d 1'v1d0ets l?efore SV!e retires. W\rs. 1'Ii:iir tV1t111ked tVJe W\ti'jor i:111d Cov111t'j 

Commissio11 for VJer 'jei:irs of service worki110 witVJ tVJem i:111d tVJeir sv1pport. SVJe spoke of tVJe 

CV1t1lle110e Commissiovier SV1t1Yer Vltid 0ive11 VJer wV1e11 SVJe l?e0i:111 VJer jov1r11e'j i:is tVJe "Director 

of Accov111ts i:ivid 1'v1d0ets. SVJe i:iccepted tVJi:it CV1t1lle110e i:ivid ti:ilked i:il?ov1t tVJe five 

covisecv1tive i:iv1dits tVJe cov111t'j V1t1S sivice V1t1d. SVJe pi:issed i:1I0110 to tVJe Iviterim "Director €rivi 

1:!ice Vier CV1t1ile110e i:is tVJe viext "Director of Accov111ts i:ivid 1,v1d0ets i:ivid 0Me VJer tVJe i:iv1dit 

fividi110s from pi:ist yei:irs i:111d CV1t1lle110ed VJer to lei:irvi from tVJem i:is sVJe VJerself i:ilso did. W\rs. 

1,li:iir stMed tV1t1t sVJe is leMi110 tVJe cov111t'j witVJ i:i $ 12.t milliovi dolli:ir fv111d l?i:ili:ivice i:is of 

Jv111e 20, 2022 for tVJe Cov111t'j G,eviernl fv111d. €i0V1tee11 yei:irs i:111d tVJree movitVls i:100 011 

"Deceml?er (i,, 2004 Cov111t'j Commissiovi voted to i:ippoi11t W\rs. 1'Ii:iir i:is tVJe "Director of 

Accov111ts i:111d 1'v1d0ets i:111d sVJe promised tV1t1t sVJe wov1ld do VJer jol? dili0e11tl'j witVJ ivite0rit'j 

i:111d V1011est'j i:111d i:isked W\i:i'jor 1'rndsV1t1W i:ivid tVJe le0islt1tive l?od'j of Cov111t'j Commissio11 to 

i:iccept tVJis i:is VJer i11te11t to retire i:111d tVJM sVJe V1t1S Mfilled VJer promise. 

I11terim "Director of Accov111ts i:ivid 1'v1d0ets €rivi 1:!ice prese11ted for co11sideri:itio11 of 

recomme11di:itio11 to i:ipprovel!esolv1tiovis for i:ippropriMe /W.1'A fv111ds - "District 1 SeM A: 

1) $ 3t5,000 for pt1Yi110 cov111t'j roi:ids 

2) $ 10,000 co11tril?v1tio11 to -Vv1111?i:irl!ose11wi:ild fov111di:itio11, I11c. 

3) $ 5,000 co11tril?v1tio11 to Kiwi:iviis Clv11? of Tellico Villi:10e 

4) $ 10,000 covitril?v1tio11 to Lov1dovi Cov111t'j SVJeriff's "Depi:irtme11t 1'e11evolevit fv111d 

5) $ 50,000 co11tril?v1tio11 to Tellico Villi:10e fire "Depi:irtme11t 

<i,) $ 20,000 for pi:irtii:il fv111di110 of erosio11 co11trol tit tVJe Sr. u11ter 

Commissiovier1:tlvidolpV1 mi:ide i:i motiovi to i:ipprove tVJe /W.1'A fv111ds for "District 1 Setit A 

items 1-/i,. Commissio11er G,ei:imes secovided tVJe motiovi. 

Commissio11 c.\tli:iirmi:111 CMlle11 ci:illed for ti 1:!oll ~II Vote. 

TVJe followi110 commissio11er voted A'/€: 

Je11ki11s, Qv1ille11, Si:itterfield, WVlitfield, CMlle11, W\orriso11, SV1t1Yer, Wi:iller, 1:tl11dolpV1, G,etimes 

(10) 

TVJe motio111'ASStD. (10/0)12.€$0LUTION 03QG>2.3-"D 

I11terim "Director of Accov111ts i:111d 1'v1d0ets €ri111?.ice prese11ted for co11siderntio11 of 

recomme11di:itio11 to i:ipprove 1:!esolv1tio11s for i:ipproprii:ite /W.1'A fv111ds - "District 1 Sei:it 1': 

t) $ '3t'S,OOO for pMil10 cov111t'j roi:ids 

£,) $10,000 co11tril?v1tio11 to "Dv1111?t1rl!ose11wi:ild fov111dt1tio11, I11c. 

Cl) $ 5,000 co11tril?v1tio11 to Kiwt111is Clv11? of Tellico Villi:10e 

10) $10,000 co11tril?v1tio11 to Lov1do11 Cov111t'j SVJeriff's "Depi:irtme11t 1'e11evole11t fv111d 

11) $ 50,000 co11tril?v1tio11 to Tellico Villi:10e fire "Depi:irtme11t 

12) $ 20,000 for pi:irtii:il fv111di110 of erosio11 co11trol i:it tVJe Sr. u11ter 

Commissio11er G,ei:imes mi:ide i:i motio11 to i:ipprove tVJe /W.1'A fv111ds for "District 1 Setit 1' 

items 1-/i,. Commissio11er1:tl11dolpV1 seco11ded tVJe motio11. 

Commissio11 c.\tli:iirmi:111 CMlle11 ci:illed for ti 1:!oll ~II Vote. 

TVJe followi110 commissio11er voted A'/€: 

Q"'ille11, Si:itterf1eld, Wl'litfield, CMlle11, W\orriso11, Svii:iver, Wi:iller, 1:t111dolpl'l, G,ei:imes, Je11ki11s 

(10) 

3 
DRAFT COPY 
Not Approved 



(11,) /1R1'11 f••~s -
Vis-trict"/ 

(HJ 1l••~•t AVn•••vn••ts 
- f•nos 101, 
12.?, 131, 
141,142.,143 

Loudon County Commission Meeting Minutes, Monday, March 6, 2023 

Tvie VY10-tio111'ASSW. (10/0J 12,'ESOLUTION 03Q(i,,23-€ 

I11-teriVY1 Pirec-tor of Accoi.111-ts t111d '1,i.1d<3e-ts €ri11"'Rice prese11-ted -to CoVY1VY1issio11 for 

co11sidern-tio11 of recoVY1VY1e11dti-tio11 -to t1pprove 1?.esoli.1-tio11 -to t1pproprit1-te IW-1'A fi.111ds -

Pis-tric-t 4: 

1) $ ':i0,000 -to 1'V1ilt1delpviit1 fire Pept1r-tVY1e11-t 

C.OVYIVY1issio11er WVJi-tfield VY1t1de ti VY1otio11 to t1pprove tvie IW-1'A fi.111ds for Pistric-t 4. 

C.OVY1VY1issio11er Svit1ver seco11ded tvie VY1otio11. 

CoVYIVY1issio11 Cvit1irVY1t111 C'-llle11 ct1lled for ti 12.oll Ct\11 Vote. 

Tvie followi11<3 CoVY1VY1issio11er Voted A'lt: 

Stl-tterfield, Wviitfield, C'-llle11, Vv'orriso11, SvitiYer, Wt1ller,"'Rtl11dolpvi, 6,etiVY1es, Je11ki11s, Qi.1ille11 

(10) 

Tvie VY1otio111'ASSW. (10/0J 12.'ESOLUTION D3Q(i,,23-f 

I11-teriVY1 "Director of Accoi.111-ts t111d '1,i.1d<3ets €ri111?.ice prese11ted to coVY1VY1issio11 tvie 

co11sidertl-tio11 of recoVY1VY1e11dt1tio11 to t1ppr0Vel2.esoli.1tio11s to t1ppropriti-te IW-1'A fi.111ds -

"District 7: 

1) $ 20,000 to Tellico "'Reservoir PevelopVY1e11t A<3e11cy (TRPAJ 

2) $ 70,000 co11tril:ii.1tio11 to frie11ds of Tellico Villt1<3e Lil:irnry 

C.OVY1VY1issio11er SvitiYer VY1t1de t1 VY1otio11 to t1pprove tvie IW1'A fi.111ds for "District 7. 

C.OVYIVY1issio11er Qi.1ille11 seco11ded tvie VY1otio11. 

CoVYIVY1issio11 Cvit1irVY1t111 C'-llle11 ct1lled for t1 Tull Ctill Vote. 

Tvie followi11<3 coVY1VY1issio11er voted A'I€: 

Wviitfield, C'-llle11, Vv'orriso11, SvitiYer, Wt1ller, 12.tl11dolpvi, G,etiV\'ies, Je11ki11s, Qi.1ille11, St1tterfield, 

(10) 

Tvie VY1otio111'ASSW. (10/0J 12,'ESOLUTION D3Q(i,,23-6, 

I11teriVY1 "Director of Accoi.111ts t111d '1,i.1d<3ets €ri111?.ice prese11ted to coVY1VY1issio11 co11siderntio11 

of recoVY1VY1e11dti-tio11 -to t1pprove t1VY1e11dVY1e11ts i11 tvie followi11<3 fi.111ds: 

1) Coi.111-ty G,e11ernl fi.111d 101 12,'ESOLI.ATTON D3D(i,,23:±/ 

2) Specit1!12.eve11i.1e (IW-1'AJ fi.111d 127 12,'ESOLUTION D3Q(i,,23-I 

3) +ti<3viwt1y Pept1rtVY1e11t fi.111d 131 12,'ESOLUTION D3D(i,,23-J 

4) G,e11ernl 1'wpose Scviool fi.111d 14112.'ESOLl,ATTON D3Q'e23-K 

<,J Scviool federnl 1'rojects fi.111d 142 12,'ESOLUTTON D30(i,,2 3-L 

G,J Ce11trnl Ctifeterit1 fi.111d 143 12,'ESOLUTION D3D'223-Vv' 

C.OVYIVY1issio11er Wviitfield VY1t1de t1 VY1otio11 to t1pprove tvie l:ii.1d<3et t1VY1e11dVY1e11ts iteV\'is 1-G,. 

CoVYIVY1issio11er Svit1ver seco11ded tvie VY1otio11. 

C.OVYIVY1issio11 CVlt1irVY1t111 C'-llle11 ct11led for t112.oll Ctill Vote. 

Tvie followi11<3 coVY1VY1issio11er voted A'/€: 

Ci.1lle11, Vv'orriso11, SvitiYer, Wt1ller, 1?.ti11dolpvi, G,et1VY1es, Je11ki11s, Qi.1ille11, St1tterfield, Wviitfield 

(10) 

Tvie VY1otio111'ASSW. (10/0J 

4 

DRAFT COPY 
Not Approved 



(1e,J "Distrib~tio• 
of l'lo•t~I~ 
'Reports 

(1q) 'Bo•ds ~ 
t1ott:lric.s 

Loudon County Commission Meeting Minutes, Monday, March 6, 2023 

I11terivri "Director of Attot-111ts tl11d "Bt-1d0ets 'Eri11"Rice ~sked tvi~t tvie record reflect tvi~t 

prit>r to tvie vrieeti110 tvie followi110 reports were distrikit-1ted: 

Covrivriissio11er w~ller Vl'ltlde ~ V11otio11 to ~pprove tvie 1?011ds ~11d Not~ries ~s follows: 

C;.irrie 'E. Cr~il'.), Tim CMrtis, Joyly11d~"R. 'DeV11ot-1stes, 'D~11ielle Gie11ee flowers, St~cy 

AV11~11d~ Girnkiki, Svielley +/e11drix, T ~kiitvitl A. +/t-111t, Jt-11i~ Cviey~1111e +/t-1rley, T ~kiitvi~ 

'Brooke Ivey, Kt:ire11 "R. W\~rti11, Terri Ly11 W\ills, v~11e A. 00de11, Jessie~ L. ~~I;,, 

Alliso11 'El~i11e "Rt-1tvierford 

Covrivriissio11er SviMer seco11ded tvie V11otio11. 

CoV11V11issio11er C,£,11ie11 c~lled for Voice Vote. 

Upo11 Voice Vote tvie V11otio11 l'ASS'EV t-111~11iV11ot-1sly. (10/0) tX±/I12lT D3Q(e2 3-0 

Tviere kiei110 110 ft-1rtvier l;,t-1si11ess ~ V11otio11 w~s Vl'l~de kiy CoV11V11issio11er Wtllier ~11d seco11ded 1;,y 

Covrivnissio11er Je111::i11s, tvie W\~rcvi (p, 2.02.3 Cot-111t'j CoV11V11issio11 W\eeti110 w~s ~djot-1r11ed M 

1:0S pVl'l. 

ATT'EST: 

Lot-1do11 Cot-111t'j Clerk 

5 

DRAFT COPY 
Not Approved 



Lovido\tl CovtVlty Cornvnissio\tl 

April 3, 2.02.3 

Opioid S&ttlemeti:t 

Opioid SettleVl'1e11t for Lo1Ado11 ClliA11-hj 



RESOLUTION IN SUPPORT OF DRUG DEALER LIABILITY ACT LAWSUIT 

The Loudon County Legislative Body meeting in regular session on the _· ___ day of 

_______ 2021 , a quorum being present and a majority voting in the affirmative, hereby 

RESOLVES as follows: 

WHEREAS, Loudon County, as well as other counties in Tennessee and in surrounding 

states, has experienced an epidemic related to the distribution and use of opioids by its citizens 

that has generated critical issues and problems for Loudon County, including but not limited to 

opioid addiction by Loudon County citizens, drug overdose deaths, the birth of drug dependent 

babies, a rise in criminal charges convictions for the illegal sale and use of opioids as well as other 

crimes resulting from the opioid abuse epidemic, including but not limited to burglary, theft, and 

fraud , and the lost of productivity of the citizens in the workplace, damage and destruction to the 

family unit, all resulting from the illegal sale, distribution, and use of opioids in Loudon County; 

WHEREAS, District Attorney Russell Johnson is the duly elected District Attorney 

General for the 9th Judicial District of the State of Tennessee; 

WHEREAS, General Johnson brought a lawsuit in 2017 through the law firm of 

Branstetter, Strancl1 & Jennings, PLLC to recover money for Loudon County under Tennessee' s 

Drug Dealer Liability Act ("DDLA"), and that lawsuit is pending Campbell County Circuit Court; 

The Loudon County Commission hereby RESOLVES that it fully supports the lawsuit, 

approves of the actions taken in the lawsuit thus far on its behalf, approves of the lawsuit going 

forward with Loudon County as the named plaintifl~ and retains the law firm of Branstetter, 

Strancl1 & Jennings, PLLC as counsel in this matter. 

Rollen Bradshaw, County Mayor 



B(J~--C G RANSTETTE R, . J) STFU\!,iC' f-- i e>-] ENNI NC~S 
. j 'Ii ' 

RETAINER AGREEMENT 

This agreement is made between Branstetter, Strnnch & Jennings, PLLC, c1nd Loudon County, 
Tennessee. The terms of our representation are as follows: 

Services to be Rendered: 
The legal services to be provided under this agreement arc as follows : 

1. Representation in a lawsuit relating to the opioid crisis in Tennessee, flled in Campbell 
County. 

2. Attorneys will make best efforts in the representation and shall adhere to the Tennessee 
Rules of Professional Conduct in all respects. 

Cost of Services: 
The costs of services to be provided under this agreement are as follows: 

1. Attorneys will advance all litigation costs. Client has no obligation to reimburse attorneys 
for any costs of litigation, unless successful. Attorneys have the rightto petition the court 
for the reimbursement of any costs associated with the litigation . 

2. Attorneys have the right to petition the court, if successful, for attorneys' fees on the basis of 
fee reversal, fee shilting, or fees pursuant to a common fund. Attorneys will make every 
effort to avoid a contingency fee situation, but in the case of a lump sum settlement, 
Attorneys will be entitled to 25% of total recovery plus costs advanced in the litigation. 

Risk of Le~al Action: 
It is impossible to predict the result ofa legal action. Client recognizes that Attorneys cannot 
guarantee a favorable result in this case. 

Cllen t: 

KENTUCKY 
SIS PA,luo: AVENUE 

LOUl5Vlll.E. 'f:Y 40208 
P (502] 636.~)JJ 
f (502) 636AJ42 

Firm: 

TENNESSEE 
THE FREEOOII, CErHER 

223 ROSA l. PAR.KS AVENUE, SUITE ZOO 
r!ASH\llllf.. Tll37203 

P (615) 254.881)1 
t (615) 255.5~1, 

CSJFIRM.COM 

Date 

OHIO 
425 '1/ALhUT SHEET 

SUITE 2315 
CJNCJIHIATI, OH 4510/ 

P (SU) 381.2214 
f (511) 381 ."225 



LoCAdovi CoCAVlfy CoVV\VV\issiovi 

Apri l 3, 2023 

1'roclt-lVYlt-ltio~ 

k'.e1~V11.J 'RidiVJC)S 



Proclamation 
Whereas Loudon County has a rich history of citizens deserving ofrecognition 

for service to their communities; and 

Whereas Loudon Police Department Officer Kenny Ridings is one such of those 

individuals; and 

Whereas Kenny is a lifelong resident of Loudon and Loudon County, born to 

Frances and Ted "Snake" Ridings; and 

fVhereas Kenny is a 1984 graduate of Loudon High School; and 

Whereas Kenny has been married to his wife Kathy for soon to be 18 years and 

they have their daughter Kensley; and 

Whereas Kenny is retiring from Loudon Police Department after 37 years of 

service; and 

Whereas Kenny is a 2nd generation LPD Officer and has served as School 

Resource Officer, Field Training Officer, and a member of 9th Judicial District 
S.W.A.T. team; and 

Whereas Kenny has also served on the Loudon County School Board, District I, 

Seat B since 2012; and 

Whereas Kenny will be missed by his fellow officers and the community he has 

served ; that 

Now, therefore, on this I 0th day of March in the year of our Lord 2023 that 

Loudon County Mayor Buddy Bradshaw, does recognize the service and dedication 

of Officer Kenny Ridings to the citizens, guests, and,.visitors of Loudon County and 

wish to recognize and honor him, do declare this day to be Officer Kenny Ridings 

Day in Loudon County, and this proclamation to be forever recorded in the annals 

of our history. 

Loudon County Mayor 

Buddy Bradshaw 



Lovtdo"1 Govt\ilt~ Gornrnissio"1 

April 3, 2.02.3 

:rrocl~ VYltil±i o~ 
T evi\llessee Vo\llor Services / April Nv1tioviv1I Vovitite Life W\o\11-tvl 



#bcthe~ 
DONOR SERVICES 

D(!_NATE 

LIFE 
7~~ 

SUPPORTING ORGAN, EYE, AND TISSUE DONATION BY WAY OF PROCLAIMING 
APRIL AS NATIONAL DONATE LIFE MONTH 

By becoming an organ, eye, and tissue donor, one individual can save and heal the lives of more than 
seventy-five people. During April designated National Donate Life Month, and throughout the year, we 

honor the compassion and generosity of registered donors, donor families, and living donors, and 
recognize the commitment of medical professionals, researchers, innovators, champions, and national 

partners who work tirelessly to save and improve lives through donation and transplantation. 

PROCLAMATION 

WHEREAS, Tennessee Donor Services (TDS) is a Donate life agency and nonprofit organization 
dedicated to saving and improving lives through organ, eye, and tissue donation throughout Tennessee, 
and is one of 57 Organ Procurement Organizations (OPOs) throughout the nation; and 

WHEREAS, each organ donor HERO can give the gift of life to eight people and each tissue donor 
can improve another 75 lives; and 

WHEREAS, more than 100,000 American men, women, and children--3,000 of whom are 
Tennesseans--are waiting for lifesaving organ transplants; and 

WHEREAS, the most effective way to address this health crisis is to educate and to encourage 
Tennesseans to commit to registering their decision to be organ, eye, and tissue donors in the Donate life 
Tennessee Registry, DonatelifeTN.org, or at their local Driver Services Center; and 

WHEREAS, _____ supports saving lives through organ, eye, and tissue donation and finds 
the cause of such immediate and worthwhile importance that, 

NOW, THEREFORE, I, _____ with and on behalf of ____ do Proclaim that 

observes: -------
APRIL AS NATIONAL DONATE LIFE MONTH 

And in observance, I ask all citizens to register their decision to be donors in the Donate Life Tennessee 
Registry at DonateLifeTN.org or their local Driver Services Center. 

Adopted by the ____ this XX day of XXX 2023. 



Loudovt Couvtty Covnvnissiovt 

April 3, 2.02.3 

Lovtdol:1 Covtl:1:hi €tol1ovnic vevelopvnel::lt 

T'v1rcvit1se IV1d1Astritil T'roper'f\j 



Date: March 20, 2023 

County: Loudon 
Parcel Number: 080 
Deeded Acreage: 231 
Calculated Acreage: 236.2 
Date of TDOT Imagery: 2019 
Date ofVexcel Imagery: 2021 

., 

0 

I 
0 

0.13 
I 

0.2 

1:18,056 
0.25 

I 
0.4 

I 
I 

I 
I 

0.5mi 

0.8 km 

Esri Community Maps Contributors, Esri, HERE, Garmin, SafeGraph, 
GeoTechnologies, Inc, METUNASA, USGS, EPA, NPS, US Census Bureau, 
USDA, State of Tennessee, Comptroller of the Treasury, Office of Local 
Govemment (OLG) 

The property lines are compiled from information maintained by your local 
county Assessor's office but ara not conclusive evidence of property 
ownership in any court of law. 



Greenback 



Legend 



Gree,nback 



Legend 

A-1 

0 C-1 
, C-2 
, M-1 

0 P-1 

0 R-1 



April 3, 2023 

Ltir'3e forwii::1t priviter lei::1se review.:::11 forl?.e'3ister of Veeds 

(24 W\OVJtVlS tit$ 20CI W\DV!tVl) 



RJ Young Comp,rny- Nashville 
P.O. Box 40623 Nashville, TN 37204 

Cost Per Copy Agreement Cuslomn1 Purchase Order 

(615)255-8551 

(800)347-1955 

Page 1 of 2 

Order# HNXX0D 

Salos Rep# CHSA41 

Billing Location Install Location 
Full Customer Narne - Include Inc., Corp., LLC elc. 

Loudon Counly Governmenl 

siroct Address 

100 River Road, Suile 110 

City 

Loudon I
Slale Zipt-11 

TN 37774 

Cuslorner N;:ime 

Loudon County Government 

Oepartmonl 

Register of Deeds 

Slrcet Address 

101 Mulberry St# 202 

City 

Loudon 

Contact Namo 

Susan Huskey, CPPB 

'

Phone# 'Fax# 

865~458-4663, 865-458-4871 
Meter Contact 

Tammy Gallaher 

Email 

Qty. Manufacturer Equip . ID 

Canon AM59631 

Trade-ln/Buyoul (llems to be picked up) 

Model 

C:mail 

tammy@titlesearcher.com 

Serial Number 

imagePROGRAF TM-305 MFP T36 <2~ BAKS03238 

lcounty 

Loudon 

Phone# 

Stale 

TN l
2lp•4 

37774 

Fax# 

(865) 458-2605 (865) 458-9028 

Unil Price Amounl 

Total This Pago 

Total From Add'! 
Equipment Lisi 

>----+-------------------1-----------------l------------+-...:..-'------1-------..f Sales Tax 

Total 

1) Tl>e equipment speci fied above will be provided at the following rales: 

~~- -~ -----~-- ~ --~~~-- ~ ·~~--~-,--~--- ~~ Cornrncncernenl Da!~ Term Security Oeposil Tolal Minimum Paymenl Minimum Oillin9. Freguen~Y. Overage Billing Frequency 

24 $209.00 Monthly Monthly 

Monthly Minimum 
Number of B&W Copies 

Mon!hly Minimum 
Number of Square Feet 

Monthly Minimum 
Number of B& W Prints 

Remarks: 

Monthly Minimum 
Number of Misc 

Ovcrane Rafe per 
B&WCopy 

Ovorage Ra1e per 
Square Fool 

Overage Rate~ per 
B&WPnnl 

Overage Rate per 
M,sc 

Monthly Minimum 
Number nf Color Copies 

Mo 111hly Minimum 
Number of Unoar Feet 

Monthli Minimum 
Nurnoer of Color Prinls 

Monlhly Miniml.m 
Number of Misc 2 

Ovc1a~e Rate per 
Color Copy 

Ovcraoc Ralc per 
linear Foot 

Overage Rate per 
Color Print 

Overage Rate per 
Misc 2 

Aoreemenl Includes 
• Yes □ Na Master Unit 
• Yes □ No Color Supplies 
• Yes □ No Drum/Photo Conductor 
• Yes □ No lmaQinq Units 
• Yes □ No Parts/Labor 
• Yes o No 
• Yes CJ No 
• Yes □ No 
CJ New Account 
CJ Upgrade 

□ Additional Unit 
• MAM 

Toner/Dispersanl 
Developer 
0lher See Comments 

o New Eouiomenl 
□ Rernanufaciurnd 

Equiprnenl 
■ Used 

CJ Yes ■ No MICR Toner 

Included SMP (Supply and Mainlenance Plan) covers service calls, parts, labor, and supplies (ink, 24# bond paper, and print heads). The SMP includes 
zero monthly base volume. Billing is based on per square foot rate in three coverage categories: Line Drawings (. 17 per S.F) . Medium Density (.25 per S.F.) , 
and High Density (.42 per S.F.) r:~ales are fixed for lease term and will nol increase. 

Additional terms and conditions on page 2. 

Signature : 
Sales Rep: _______________ _ Date: -----

Print Name: _______________________ _ 

Tille : Dale: Sales Manager: Date: 

I IIIIIII IIIIII II IIIII IIIIII 1111111111111 



COST PER COPY AGREEMENT TERMS AND CONDITIONS 
This is a non-cancelab/e agreement 

Page 2 of 2 

Order#I.___H_N_X_X_0_0___, 

2. RENTAL AGREEMENT. You agree lo renl lhe equipmenl described in lhis Cosl per Copy 
agrccmenl (cofleclively "Equipmenl"). This Agrcr.menl wlll begin on the commencement date 
!is led in lhe Cosl Per Copy Agreemenl (CPC). You agree lo pay us any requ ired Scwrily 
Ocposil wher1 you sign lhis Agreement. YourCPC Paymenl consists or lhe Periodic EQulpm r.nt 
Payment and 1hr. Periodic Supply Maintenance Paymenl. The Excess Charge Per Copy i~ u,c 
variable charge for maintenance services and supplies (as set forth in this Agreement) for 
copies In excess of Minimum Copy Requirement (or !he applicable period. Unless olhcrwise set 
rorlh in lhis l\grecmcnl, each CPC rrnymcnl is due and payable monlhly. The Minimum Monthly 
Paymenl is due whclher or nol you receive an invoic~ (rorn us. Excess Charge Per Copy 
amounts are payable as invoiced by us following the end of each Billing Period. If in any per iod 
you make fewer copies than lhe Periodic Copy Requirement, you cannot carry over Iha! amount 
lo any other period . We have the rigt1I lo increase, wilhout wrillcn nolice, lhe Periodic Supply 
Mainlenance Payment and the Excess Charge per Copy on an annual basis . You w ill provide us 
with accuralc meter re~d inos for each item of Equipment when nnd by such means as we 
rcquesl. YOU AGREETHATWE MAY ESTIMATE THE NUMBER OF COPIES PROOUCED IF A 
METER READING IS NOT RECEIVED BY US WITHIN 5 DAYS OF THE DATE WE SPEClrY. 
IF AN ACTUAL METER READING IS RECEIVED WITHIN 90 DAYS OF THE DILLING DATE 
FOR THE EXCESS COPIES, ANAOJUSTMENTVVILL BE MADE. NOTHWITHSTANDINGANY 
ADJUSTMENT, YOU WILL NEVER PAYLESS THAN THE PERIODIC CPC PAYMENT.Single 
copy charges apply up lo 0.5" x 14". For eflicienl and electronic m~ler read ing, RJY utilizes 
specialized sorrware lhat rcpor1s current meter readings on all print devices conneclcd lo your 
Nct\York. Cuslomer agrees lhat meters may be accessed anU repor1ed in this manner. Should 
the number of scans exceed the Iola[ or all prints arid copies, we reserve lhe right to invoice 
these excess scans at S.0025 per scan. You will make all paymenls required under fhi s 
Agreement to us al the address we may spcciry ln writing. Unless a proper exemption certificalc 
is provided applicable- sales and use laxes will ti e added to the Paym ent. fr any Payment is not 
paid when due, you will pay us a lale cht1rge or up lo 15% or the amounl of the payment or 
S 15.00 wllichever Is grealer (or such lesser ra1c as is 1he maximum rate allowed under 
applicable law) . You also agree lo pay SJ5.00 for eacl! rolurned check. Reslriclivc 
endorsemenls or addilional terms on checks you send lo us will not reduce your obligal/ons lo 
us . 

J . CONNECTION TO COMPUTERS/NETWORKS. RJY offers complimcnlary inslallalion al 
manufaclurer prinl drivers and software for any conneclable equipmen! lis1cd in lhis agreement. 
lns1allation is performed by supporl personnel. Cuslomcr agrees lo provide access and 
in!ormalion req uired to cornplelc lhe requested installation. Customer will provide all necessary 
nelwork cabl!ng reQuired for installalion. If RJY performs lhe lnstallalion/Connectiun, lhe cuslorner 
agrees lhal RJY Is responsible ror only compleling the inslallation and setup o( the equipment 
lisled In !his agreement. The initial installalion and any additional basic configurations are c:overed 
at no charge for the first 90 days under lhc condition lhal 1he customer has made no changes lo 
lhcir network during !hat period. lnstallal ions requiring c)('tensive conflgurallon will be quoled 
separately and performed upon request . A fter !he iniIial 00 day period, any network connectivity 
support rcquesled by !he customer will be billed al RJY's lt1en currenl charge rate for conneclivity 
suppor1. RJY will nol be held liable for any errors, propeny damage , loss of lime or profil, 
consequential or incidental damages o! any kind arising as result o( operating any soflware 
provided wilt, lhe purchase or a manuracturer's producl or downloaded from a manufacturer's 
websilc . 

4. TITLE : RECORDING. We are I1,e owner of and will l1old !Ille 10 ll1e Equipment You will keep 
the Equipment free of all liens and encumbrances. 

5. USE. You shall use Ifie Equipment in a careful and proper manner in conformance with 
manulaclurer's specificalions and all laws, ordinances and regulations in any way relaling to the 
possession or use of lhe Equipment. Cuslomer represents that lhese producls am NOT acquired 
for personal, ramify, or household p11rposcs . 

6. INDEMNIFICATION. You are responsible for any loses, damages . penallies, claims, suils and 
actions (collectively "Clai,llsw), whether based on a lh~ory of slricl liability or otherwise caused by 
or relalcd to the lnstallallon, ownership, maintenance. use . rental , possession , or delivery of the 
Equipment. You agree lo relmhurse us ror and . ir we rcquesl, le dcrend us ilgninsl any Claims. 

7. ASSIGNMENT. You agree nol lo sell, assign, lransfer or sublease lhe equipmenl or your 
interest in this Agreement. We may, wilhoul nol ifylny you. sell. ~ssign, or lransfr.r this Aoreemenl 
and our rights to lhe F.quipmenl. The rights of the assignee will nol he sulJjf:?cl lo any clnim, 
defense or set-oft lhat you may havP. against us . 

8. LOSS OR DAMAGE. You are responsible for any loss, thell. deslruclio11 of, or dan1agc lo. ihe 
Equipmenl (collectively - toss") lrom any cause al all, whether or not insured, unlil il is del ivered 
to us at the end of !his Agreemenl. You are required to make all CPC poyments even if there is a 
Loss. You must notily us in writing immedialely or any Loss . Then , at our oplion, you will cilhcr 
(a) reµair lhc Equipmeril so lhal il is ill good condil ion and working order. elig ible for any 
manufacturer's cc, tificalion, or (b) pay us the amount equal to the net pre sent value ol all unpaid 
CPC Payments for 11, e remainder of l he term plus the pre!ient value or ow anIicipalcd rcsictual 
interest in lhe [:quiprnenl. c-.>ch discounlcd nl sn/n per year, compounded annually , plus all <Jlh8r 
amounls due Of that may become due llnder lhis Agreement. If you have satisfied yow 
obligalions under this Seclion 9, we will rorward lo you any insurance proceeds tha t we receive 
for losl , tJamaged . or UesIroyed EQuipment. If you are in de faull, we will apply any insurance 
proceeds we receive lo reduce your obligalions und er Secllon 16 ol lhis Agreement. 

9. TAXES AND FEES. You agree lo show lhc Equipmcnl as ''Leased Properly" on all personal 
property lax returns . You will pay when due, eilher directly or lo us upon our demand, oil laxe s. 
fines and penalties relating lo lhis Agreement or the Equipment Iha! are now or in the fulurc 
assessed or levied by any state, loccJI or govern men! aufhority. 

10, EOUIPMENT LOC/\TION; RETURN . You will keep and use lt1e Equipmenl only al the 
Equipment Locnl ion shown in this Agreement. You may nol move th~ Equipmenl wilhout our prior 
written consent. You will provide adequate space and electrical services for 1hr. operation or the 
Equiprncnt. You will nol make any allerations, additions or replacements to lhe Equipment wilhou! 
our prior writlen consent. All alleralions, additions or replaccrnenls will become part of lhe 
Equipml!nt and our µroper1y al no cost or expense to us. Upon the explmtion or caf1ier 
termination of lhis Agreernenl, you will deliver the EQuipmenl to us, in good condition, full working 
order and in ccmplele repair, except ordinary wear and tear. We will pick up \he Equipment 
provided \hat !he Equipment is in our !icr.iicing territory. 1r the Equipment is outside our servicing 
territory, you will crate. insure , and ship lhc- Equipmcnl, in good working condillon, to us by means 
we dcsigriale, wilh all P.>cpenses lo be prepaid by you. You will be responsible for any damage to 
lhe Equipmenl during shipping. 

11 . RENEWAL. Unless you give us al leas! JO days \WIiien nolice before lhe end of lhe inilial lerm 
or any renew;jl 1em1 of ltiis Agreemenl, lhls Agreement will aulomalic.ally renew for an additional 
one year renewal lerm. During s11ch renewal 1errn(s) lhe CPC Paymenl will remain lhe same 
(subje c.:t lo the annual adjuslmenl provided in Seclion 2 above). We may cancel an aulomalic 
renewal lerm by sending you wriUen nolice 10 days prior lo such ,cnewal lcrm. 

12. YOUR REPflESENTATIONS. You state for our bcnefil ll1al as of lhe dale of lhis Agreement; 
(a) you have lhe lawful power and aulhorily to enler inlo lhis Agrnemenl; (b) the individuals 
signing lhis Agreemenl have been duly aulhorized lo do so on your behalf; (c) by enlering lnlo lhis 
Agrr.ernen1 you wil l no! violate any law or other agreement to which you arc a party: (d) you are 
not aware of anylhing that will have a material negalive effect on your ability la satisfy yaur 
obligations under this Agreemenl; and (e) all financial Information you have provided us is lrue 
and accuralr. and provides a good represenlalion or your current financial condilion. 

13. YOUR PROMISES. In addilion to lhe other provisions of lhis Ag1eemenl, you agree lhal 
during lhe term of lhis Agreement (a) you will promplly noliry lJS in wriling if you move your 
principal place or busine~s. if you change lhe n.ime of your business, or it !here is a change in 
your ownership; (b) you will provit1e lo us such financial information as we may reasonably 
requesl lrom lime to l ime ; and (c) you will take any action we reasonably request to protect our 
rights in the Equipment and lo meet your obligalion under this Agreement. 

14. DEFAULT. You will be in default under th is Agreement if any of the following events occur: (a) 
you ra il lo make any CPC paymenl or olher sum when due; (b) you rail lo comply wilh any other 
lerm or r:ondition of this Agreement or any olhcr agreemenl between us. or fail 10 perform any 
obligation imposed upon you rclaling to lhis Agreement or any such olt1er ag,eement; (c) you 
become insolvent , you dissolve or are dissolved. you assign your assels for !he benefit of your 
creditors, you sell, transfer or otherwise dispose or all or subslarilially all of yotJr assets, or you 
enter (voluntarily or involuntarily) Into any bankruplcy or reorganizalion proceeding ; (d) wilhout 
our prior \Wi llen consenl, you merge or consoHdale with any olher enli\y and you are riot the 
survivor or such merger al consolidation: (c) any guarantor of lhis Agreement dies, does nol 
perform its obligations under the guaranty, or becomes subjecl lo one of !he cvenls lisled in 
clause (c) above. 

15. REMEDIES. In lhe evenl you defaull under this Agrcemenl, as defined above, we will have 
the righl lo lake ONE OR MORE of lhe fallowing aclions, in addlllon lo any ond all olher remedies 
lhal may be available to us under law:(a) cancel \his Agreement without prior notice or warning to 
you; (b) file a law suil againsl you lo collecl all pasl due amounls AND ALL AMOUNTS THAT 
WILL. AECOME DUE IN THE FUTURE DURING THE UNEXPIRED TERM, plus lhe "residual 
value"' or the Equipment as deterrnir,ed by us in Ol/f sole but reasonable judgment, plus air other 
rees , ch;1rges or amounl lhal arc then due, plus all of our rc-asonr1ble legal costs, including bul not 
limited lo reasonable allomeys· fees, reasonable overhead for employee time spenl on preparing 
lor suit or r.1\lempting lo collect paymenls and miHgalo our damages; (c) repossess lhe Equipment 
or apply 10 a court ror iln order ;Jllowing repossession. In !his event, you agree that, after the 
EqL1ipmenl is repossessed, you will have no further rights in the Equipment, and you agree we 
rnay resell, re-lease or otherwise rcn,arket the Equip,nenl without notice lo you. You agree (and 
you waive any rights !hat rnay provide lo the contrary} lhat we will NOT be required to repossess, 
resell , re- lease or o1herwise rernarket 11,e Equlprnenl ,'ll any lime, and lhal our failure to do so will 
no! arrect our other rights or colleclicn and other rights under lhis Agreemenl or under law. 

16. NOTICES. All of your wrillen nollces lo us musl be senl by certified mail or recognized 
overnight del ive1y service , µostage prepaid, lo us al o,ir address staled in this Agrecrnenl. AH of 
our nol ices lo you may be s~nt first class mail. postage prepaid, lo your .Jddress slaled in 1his 
Agreement. Al any l ime afler lhis Agrcemcnl is signed, you or we may change an address by 
giving notice lo \lie olhtH of the change. 

17. MISCELLANEOUS. This Agreement contains ou, entire ;igreemcnl and supersedes any 
conll icting provision or any equipment purchase urder or any alher agrcemenl. Once lhis 
agreemenl is signed by you, lhe agreemenl conslilules an OFFER lo you, and will nol be binding 
u11lil ACCEPTED by us, as evidenced by lhe •ignalure of the Corporale Off.co. Any change In lhe 
lerms and conditions or1his Agreeme nt musl be in writ ing and signed by one of our Officers . You 
agree, however, lhal we are authorized. withoul notice lo you. to supply missing inforn1ation or 
correcl obvious errors in lllis Agreement Ir a court finds any provision of this Agreement lo be 
unenforceable , the remaining terms or the Agreemenl shall remain in etfecl. 

18. JUf1ISDICTION. You and any Guaranlor agree lhal lhis /\greer"enl will be deemed fully 
executed c1nd pcrlormed in the Slale of Tennessee and will tJc governed by Tr.nnessee law. YOU 
AND ANY GUARANTOR EXP RF.SSL Y AGREE TO: (A) BE SUBJECT TO THE PERSONAL 
JURISDICTION OF THE. ST ATE OF TENNESSEE; (B) ACCEPT VENUE IN ANY FE OERAL OR 
STATE COURT IN TE NNESSEE; AND (C) W/\IVE ANY RIGHT TO A TRIAL BY JURY. 

19. INTERPRETATION.As a convenience ta you and to further expedite this transaction (or you, 
you agree !hat a ptlolocopy, electronic image or facsimile of this Agrer.menl wt1ich includes a 
photocopy, elec!ronic: image or facsimile of the signalures or both parties shall be as valid, 
a1Jthentic nnd lcgillly binding as lhe original version ror all purposes and shall be admissible in 
court as final and conclusive evidence of this lransactian and or the execution of this document. 

20. Cuslomer will be enrolled in lhe RJ Young anline cus1omcr ponal (ePASS). This online portal 
a/fows aulhorized users designated by customer to order supplies, place service call s. pay 
invoices. view bills and view accounl inrormalion online, 



Lot,tdo\11 Cot,t\ilt~ Covnvnissio\11 

April 3, 2.023 

Cov\rtvlov\se 1'V161Se 2. reV10V61tioV1 pl61VIS 6\Vld 61ite,rntioV1S V1ot covered l:iy ftre,/code,s rep61irs 

iot611 cost of 61itern61tes $14Cl,4'o3 



ving Index 

IMt,;t' I'? 
!.,..'('.11'1'1,411$ 
o<itv.1~,._ 

l Clvll ---------
~lT 

, MJIIJ; 
O. lj C"i l D0!::0,;00-11'(1....._..,. 
1,),'l'Or.,r.lw.:,,,(lllJ~l\.'1-1 

ilYll . .... .... 
"" 
:tu,ar---------
,w:..,,,,.....,. . ..,,,~,_~s 
.I 1J.\1~ "-.All• t111J'Ot lt,0--t,\, 
::,cLtVII. •'V i'< • Jt11.NJlll',OU 
--• -~Clo.l.l. 
)l(IIIIUJU•IO-C-,'JUCl(l,01 $ 
,',11G,1;0 "'-o,.::fl,'()OC\'...._S 
4Gf01l!, .. TU',:i 
>J<IUl> IUl .. 11>1. 
~fl(U.10G tU14.lt 
..i. stC •&M 

·'""' JlitJHlt1•4.1 
l,K,- t · ~I UC ll':)::0..-.0f\,... 
11 u,u • "1.1\.(t:i tti Cl;l,.N.l ,,_..,, 

::;Mll.l.•!1. • ""1\(Clr.l O.:UNll\...,_ 
W \ O.:U.U.&.11'R'.YLL1 

LOUDON COUNTY 
COURTHOUSE 
Renovation Phase 2 
Interior & Site Renovation 

----... - ... . . 

--------
Structur•I----------

HO.I 1lrf'.~ m11~ r, l'\,.4 .. 
:.tCO-C1IYCL 11\,,l.ffi"-._.. 
>#t0.:.l\ ,4TIOl ... fll-o.l,IIII~ ..... 

M•chanlc•S----------

1,..AtSO-Cl),..o.Ui.1.Lr;f.),Ol'O~S 
1.&l;:' rrlN:lll.TAU 
._.1, ,riN",r>,."1/ • tl':\l:.J\ll't. lM'Wl,,f'.Yr 
_,17 r."'0::l'\Hl•!2CO>,l)\.l,.'_.U l '4.AT1 'Ch.i 
\ti3 """A.(;1'1.Mo ·· IIOOf 

Plurnblng ----------
ro, #\.1,,...ltl'<l,!,C>U-l.U. K>IU,l-1!1~1' 
,,, fl'll:S!l.h'f<. I .Ufl"'-4'.W1 .UNlllA., l'\.40f 
rl1 ::.«ca-<'IU \'hl,o,;;-,i,,,.,,,1~"-'"I.Nt 
'11 rNtV.<,t:L l iUo:,1'.,..:1"1tlCW.:S f ,Cyo,lll•l'l.!,lol 

:J:CO<'l l h'tl. I Pn;//t C'ICWl:11CwUt!'l,-. A..i 

Flr• Protection---------

,"tit ,~l'90Cl l (C,T('N~lJ,.IJ".1,<)l'flt(TM,.S 
I~ fK""'0TC t:TO,,Q: l "1.S 
'1'11 f~fl.l.rU ltl.SlMI.HI ff•: t'KltU:10<~ 
•l"U tr:OOIJ•1L l •llCfl'r,J'KITC0:10.!'Llll 

Electrlcal1-----------

"" '" [\Q 

'" 0.0 
a, 

~ 

U ( C.I.-.C.-..1.fGU-O t ~U 
'11:.0' ""'"' .... '".u<:.l~".W"CI 
Jl!:l"loil).T ,t"r~ l l..f.\1 1, ui;,t"'lt<il'\# .... 
1,tCOOL[I\\L(U!1.-: l'\.
l'!L-0,Tlf'R:S11.[r('.A.)"tll"'..»I 
!JCC..00 u ,,:.. PCJ',0,(1! P'l..-
,...SLl,Lo("I ffol\11 lLYCI. CCM.V,C:•TO,, lfK. ........,..,1\./Jol 
!ICCCrfJU.-t ~r.ca..,.u...:;.,.Tt:-, '"" 41.U'IIA"',....-

Project Data 
Own•r --------- Profect Address-----
r.u, .. ut111 c.ux-. 
W""'1:it"C~ SUTf fl.J 
1.U.UlN.fOl,Hl• 

~o..o,;;.,, co .. r< o:;ut11c:w.,::r. 
r,M «'O,( :':"'l<f.f.1 
lC>-0:>1. T" l'H, 

Codo■ and st~ndard• --------------
lO-f.O, ecu,i!1' 1,01,111/0.ISI C!4H'.\h.V.C1,,.11..1:"..:;. l"\'•O:. A--Z. l,tm, c,..1,<-1n,.._ .._,:XUJIIO>' 
1c; 1~11: P\ &.CO. wc.k.'ffl TO l'NS,:M t<S!~ ~..,....-:n"-CU•- l( AIU11., IIG ,.._,, Cf on.,u~ 
lo.I.. ?U'l,,o. l 'K. \ fO fll.L . UTl""" C(ll( Ctu\.,,.ux • S "-:.lp,,.{.0 , ,, flo; ;\41)9 ... '° tK 

~ 11..1 :t'l-.~f'(".o.TUG S£C10t 0, \J OJ ,........ii, C'' .. cw.: ,r.nu-,( u:n.UTD-4 Clo. ca,( U' .... ~ 
~H'II. ro ,,·,001<:t< ~ r C'>~1R.t:T0i ~s , GA .llD'T,,..,.._ ~101'! Ch f'(o,(,-,'ll.:,., 
CIO l llll."'-"1 :;(U. IJ-tl OlH'JI ~l"-CHfl",•<. ~&11:1 

lot f0.Ul•W<; (.U)(li W'(,l:f \JWJ) H T>e" ....:I'_,.,,,~ .. r.f' ~•-GJ t 1.l'(C.f C• lo-6 
;<11:: o<f[k,~ 10<-ll 11.tl'f<l:-.aJ''. 
~'Q 011L,...:.: o.&4.u,o,,,i,,~~ 
1')a ll'IIUt1•:o.,... ,-.,Mlf<. tUf: 
:ea 1il(<t"'To-,i..r.-1ca: , . 
-'=U Nl("Wl.t.1(>.A,l r,4.: ~<;C,I 
11.:u i-iH•lf•1.uo....,_,~, ..,;; ru.oo.:ic.a:>t 10,, ,, .... re ... 101,<,1. Hr::11,:41. ~n: 
l'U:'i C.(',IOG:ll.'1rlf!)fll;ftl~fila.;1(S "'IX•H.!>ASI.Ccts::::1Uc 
,hil"l .t.1,,CJ'(",.rc; .. 1, .. r~11 u ACT""'~)"-'( ............. l'lt::.>'b<. .. lltO'tALtlJU.11'..-.f Tl:I 

~ auo-1.f c :>onrthth.4.U<IO'l f •t.1,;1., 

Zoning-------------------
~~ aTY to.a o,o,.•i<t. 
c;.Jlt'()lf JONl. c-, Cll'llt\ll. ru:nss. l'fll'),,"5fO'IC (.llllfl'ICt IW(RU 

'"""~-------------- O:S):JIII0 .<'11001WJO..-

~/'l..ff'>\"Y _____ ..m·.,.,1.._ro_~l'l.$•....Ci"la~~'l'J4C.-C~ 
-b)I.JIJJ'«l~..i.f..lVT[ f'IJl.-.,.(J&VUL 1M lltln 

~200- • .x.G 

Bulldlng D■ t.a ~ Construction ■nd Occ,,panc;y-----

~""""1ai ot:Dl'&oOl.S .,;~ t.:.: ~ 1:, 
,._.J• •s:'itU'1. l !:;o.~1!1').Jot.< 
~. ,.,..,,.,,. :;..~ fO'fCJ:\; 
1-1-:1011r.i; ~'.l'"-~M'I> 

:ot..r10.cro. l ""'- l"t." r.,-: .... ~-,u hf( ,-1. c:"1itt<U.IID 
1U.<(~,Ot>°%IQ'I(~--- _ ll l'"'l""-&,,.S,[\<('-'f 
W.IM.Molu'tlOCI' S.lt'Ht .11'l'l6(; 1.0.S!. !loJ'j~IICll-•• l 2.\11:MT. ~ :,,te>l 'f. 5 • 1 ! UOIIY 
fU~•4"01ll'(.lo f"~)(C' •••• , ..••••• •----- - H ·-t•IUlrtUl;.(~•tf"'-u.E 

NU.A. t; UQI.O(~f~~oG t<<,H •I • '1<(, !CJ" niu:n•"L· f•(ll l'(: (0) 
.O.Uo,tJ.Z.1.l: ! t ',C .. l t'll\l/;.; IUl. [S.l) _ ___________ ,0". 
n .. u ,.,~.._..l.,Jlt',.''.::i',':.l 

rJ.'-€ M:), ' tGT ~-~• ~'•~••~,,~~~<><~••~"'~"'-~"========:=: 11<,;? UVH 
ar.f),,(I H .... t"l . ... ,~. 

l lll>"l.b.f. • tf,, '1;/oJ11).-.0IUOC h!!l.£l1Clu.,J,IJ..~l(~l-l•1 H.CC fl': ll 11 DO.lSl'.:)H ' I.S00 ~F. 
-;:-c,,ca•!<>(f LO,.DO'fllti:. 1UU'. tno1J • :.l t ~-t_"'l l tll 
l'(.'! /1 10 S~-..C:1:Ao.1. U'-IWM'.:!. I~ Cl'l:>ILC,,0 t,f""" l O,. 

Abbrov1,.tlan•----

..:.1.11.A•U,., 
IOlo(U 
1.-.Dl",J 
60110,,,'::1 
• ••.n,G 
ro,,1.a..,,: ... , 
UU•J u,...,.,. 
co;c.~1 (1'UO#ffUl1 
c:-~ r~ 
~lf1' 
Cl(),,U.l'OJT 
t:ft,o.•t../:.1 
r ..r~.01.llHt 
,UCP,C" 
, .~ 1(-.:)il 
n.~i>' ..... 
l·"'l" I .O,-OG,4 11, C-,1,•••U 
!04!)lrtl.'()IIC,l'fAtf)'I 
H~ P(h,"(l ....-1 ! ,C:•f\O 
~we 
GAI. VM UlD 

'""M ~'fo"'CT:.ssn..u 
,-+"(',..T 

ro.40,,w._rii. 
U:U...,.JUI ,.,,.,. 
L-..,.Y( 
I.C" w,,u 1'111 ~ Ck.U 
-.U•C: ~IJl'l:JII 

- ·· WI. I.OSIVl!.1'1U11Sll.>o"I 
"':, "01 NCOl'l'-'ACI .... ..,._ 
lo l.3 14)11:J~..U: 
o..:. l)f,l~Tff, 
011 Oll'P0'.7!1':to•'-1 
'"i.. fV.£ ?,.;u ..... H 
, .1. r,,f~ollf. fll,A \1 0 
,C.J'. H.t\ ~Hff"1.c{CN._Y.11J'l"Y 
l',lJ "'001<1<0!,l,O/ 
w-4 s,..,.. u 
"°"c. Y'£CTc•ro,, 
tOU.:I. S 'l'VC"H.tUI. 
11l l~D' ..... 
v, 
v.c.,. ..,., 
Ylf , 

:,00;,._11,a U O.::,V.HU.lt k'.: 
n m.C~O'n0<1H 
11),lcl.l. 
l'fi lfT '°"/(t" 

r,1,,c• 



■ 



J> 
0 
rv 

t,.,, 

i . 

II 



!cific Purpose Survey for: County of Loudon 
.·ave Street -Being All of the Property Described in Deed Book A, Page 70 ~ A Parcel of Land 
ring in the First Civil District of Loudon County & within the City of Loudon, Tennessee 

""'·' • c:=:~· • ., 1~1 fP ••a-:r. c.r , ,,:r, , -i1,o: i.:,,,, ~l\"'U:C I ;,,. I .; l •;~.•I i.,· <,.ll. lt:I'- 10. 11 : 0 
•1.•;-,:,;;,c( ;,:•,:;.,_.,,!T•!P1.:!L!:!Q; l li,r,-:•" 
t•· r-•r. r,:1,:•, -,· 1~-:'!"r>• .:. 11~ n:,.,,~ • :i 

.\ ', M ~i. 1t1 l•t !JI;:,. :1 ~,11;,,;1 ..,-,(, .. :-.. .J"' 
:: .,,, ~ , a ;'H I · • :;..-; ,,,;•1· • ._ ., (,••, I.i v:-· :,.;!;t:, 
"(;\r 11• \,Li I~• • '- I- ➔,~~ .,,., .,:~ ; n ;:_• !,., •. ., 
~~.ff.[ I\ !IIL (C,:; G' • ••11" , ,,..: U(:ht 

. f" :,-,, r,,• r , .. 1.,:~.r.-.,"~' ,.. rw 1,r .-::~ ;t ~-
' I ,.!, )' ..;, I _.,. ,, •;.'/,':., r :JI :1 , . 1~'•'11 l~>:L!, 
11.c ,~•.r- ... r rrr· "!'I .. r. rH: ,; r,,r rri:,· c,; 
,Ll~ !/ -~ ... ;: ~.,,; , •n-.•,l)c•,t; ::, ·11i. C:J;::\•,", 
111,.{ ,-.~T t• ,n !Ll ••\."f<"' ~ l !t,ir.l 1•7.1 
1> •l.•\I ,cc- r., • ·; h ,. ': •l .. '-"= ;:::.,,; •!f -:rO •Y. 
!'!<•,-::; .,_,:_p n , :, :;:;,:c~.a."c.::; .. no 1. r 
$ _.:, t,1,; 1~:: I\ '1 1l f ' . .> I .&.', L' )I. •1•.1:1 L"' l" L 
1,,-:; ' \,..;r, l··ot :";" ': [I 1:, ~ .•;•1.,.( !'I ·-.,7 ! : .;C 
::n,1r"; 1)1( , • .0.11.· :,· ·11 ; Y-t;,,,1,1~ 

cu,~ ,'-.J.. \ • L L.\,l) ,..-,;.,, M:; ~:.~c-i ..... ,; 1•1 hi\, 
·-, 1::vi r,~ r.·.'H'r• a t. -,.,r r1.'1 ,:: f.{.,;ar n 
• VU cO: l ; .. r,L•.J :.: ,rJ; ••L r,.; I L •.~,; i' ,l!I > 
,r. U I ! ' t,(Jt •· .. .. ,:; ,. i\ [ • •G - .. ~ r:.,:, ;, .. :.r.; 
. ;,,~q t;~.f s a, , ,. •• ,, l • ( -:; , •;:, l'•l:• ~< '\ IC 
• \ <I-'!: .J. a• . 1. , ~i:•,f.ll , ,,;:. 1;.1;!(:'J;!' !i · .-;. :. 
!1 1 \'!° ~• 11>:.,';1"~ "(. a ;..- :: ,1 Ill; 1r, f. •n I :l" 
,: .. . , I• J,Y ,10 •,L • t' . <l l(." 1 V'. ·· I :,I ~ • • l .'I' ;• 
. , :.,. !A ll :1r•1:r1,:.1.1 ,'{ :rV..l!#~ P ~ .. ,r, l••l 
,,; ;·,,_~, ,,.,_,; \.\, ) . '"" ~.._r, f, IJ•:Ol ll', 1 • 11",1 ..,,, ,.,n ';l:n.11 ; : ,, ; p.,..,· ,_,o If'. !, 1: i;.o• ; 

'(.I ·,u ~-• ·: 1•01y n : r.1( ~•-::.,.,e, r, ,,., 
.;. - 1)~ ::L•h•\ :;I ,<;.1 \,IL'l :i<,;\ ', • • :.· ~\'I ,-,, ~ _,, 
.. r f.Llt: i" •P !i' '- :., n •r r,l•.- r!Pt ... ~ 
,,;:•,.,."; :Lt.1.~ l •;'i l, <l U• ;IWi t,1' i:: 11,:'L 

···· · · ················· -············1 
A!.L.-\. .S!t..II'.!Qil I 

,u:tl :i;::i: c,;,,,1a,1<~ 1;,.:rn j 
\~£>.,l ~r::1 · .n .-:itCr.. v,>·.i,: 

t,o;L!U 
,.,.,.....~,-~··· .. ·· ....... ·· ·· .... ·.--. 

,,...: ~, · 
. ·,1 .. · .. · .. ,. 

~ ..... ,,, ..... 
. -~ .. ~-

·-~~·-··,:,,•,;.. . . ·. ','.?::-=":""=="'"--~~.·,_·,~~.~ .. ::-,.·::·"·····~.:·.~~.~.--'.:::.-.·.~ .. :._.-.. ·.'i_ .•. ~.·'··:i.;,{_P:-,:{~t) :;I, ~ ·-·· ~ ·- ... ···t~~~E::rr:~: - --===~ ~,~:··· ... -•-· · 
. · .-J~ \, ,: j J( (I ,(}1~, ,- f,•,.; ' ;z!• = \ ) .,. .. - ··-··· 

..... . ;-~ ;-~ . ... ... , ', ~-.-,,,.-} . J . .,.;,~: ~--~-(.:.: _·:; _-
,,,;u ... •>\~'!;~_~ •• •l•t ' !1- - - - - - ~~~-:-~ 

[ ,_.,_,, 7 ~-c~-7 8 ' 
.!' . I ..,,.,,' ~ ... " ., ',.,,' :-,,, ," ~. I'·~· .. ,_ ,,,,:' . ·,, -- ·'' ,,,.-· I ' 

I 
>. 
f 

· ,_ .. · -~ "_ ·': •·· t I :;- ·-- ·,,.,,<i" . ,.-.,- 'i ..;,,... 

I, 

L!!..'.,:\~~-~l 
S 16U: ... M

0

5 HO!f"'. 
I ilU""I~~ ~ .. J.,, .; ;_,;rr,1 .o.111" llt ,"l w;,.: i.b 1:, ·'M i: \ ':"O< Aw~u:111 ·: • 

,r1•1r,, tln•::~:(l' r.<;J :( -1,: •C:•tf,(M:.i: ,v,-v.,P,t "'1: f\T",·~;11 1,~·' [l( 
:• -,,·,N";;,':'lr•~~. ~·111.'-1 \L: r ~~'<. 

I •J.t •;i:. ,.~,:tf !.ol•t,.•. 1 U''II!' 1.,1: llt:•l !~'tl l-'.r. 1,11 .,l l "lof•'-:t: l -:i , . 
l•l ~,.,,~l', .J :1<1:..011. r•c•Ul f O i '1•\ 1-(:J.{ C'. l\ r ·1,~?1l10~ ·. 

J ~ ~"ll'J'.'.I ~l•.•;-;1 i•.•L•:" AM~ j.;Ul"~'l.al) 10 ' Hi 'l.;tltot M ·tn-.;<11 • 
•110 ,. .. llf•-'• 11rr11,., 1r, ,.~ r-r 1"1111.::r.~ nr,-0: 1..,.,04- ,v -....,1,·1"!'", 

~;.OOAI. •~1 IIO\<l :1ou. :~t.o..-h•t ,:,.,-~•A•i; llllof) e,,,~: ·1,'-1':l :l":l'il:~•• 
,~.,,,r +- '<• o. l\ :iorci1:.,c• ~t cr,~.s 1-r. rQ,;nr~1•~ •c~•·""::• :r 
0\1,! •~"\U 1-1; ;.04 •,1.· :.:uc~ t<J" l, -:.~u~ :.C•l •Ul 1,:-1:,c.,·I\LL• ~~ •J 

•l'-1.\l ,:;.,.1, ,•.\. \"I&. HII', .\JI~ L:'. 1\U Ii\" t:...J.'.' """ 
1; :::c:1 : ,~1~1,: 1 ..-.._ f~ .J•~~·,., \ l.a. :C ~:;.t11:,11 h !:l;l[C.C. 14T iv: 

t :,,t: .,_,:r, •i•- it=::.J~ ... \;' .• f: 11---s,:.,r, o.f•:Jt t • ;~1.,~.~ lf."!:'t\ 

• 1-r. -.:. ur.v s-c-;.11 -~~c c•: ... , -.r·.,~o u Tt1r. : ;:r:iru,c w~1.fvt 
· =i. .. •.:•,m~ 11~":l ~· ,._.,_._i;i .,,. ~.:r f ,,.u 1,01(W:•f.N :u, -r.,~ nu rl(.1: 
'L, ::i, 

t . .J. ', J ) ,~ :Jl".\I,:; P••' /4,;, ~\,ILrll~ n,o •JI li l.l.1 "' 'H H '"" ,,,,;:- :; :,• • 
.. ; ,, c., ':'ls~tr ,u s fin r;Q J-:,wr, 1\1 tt-e'-1'! ._, ., u,. :c•.:-~cv•.J,. 
U"\l•!:•,;;it.,.•u: •il \.l tL -; ~u:,,, ,,:.u., ... ,, - .11t , i:.; ,1 .1. :1,..:1 •n:: , .. r.r , 
.. !I . fir:;- :.•.~:-.,;._~, "10'• .... t'!t s-1z-.-,1. ,,:, -:v•~•J1::,:- .:, r,1·u• 
1:-:~11:.>1 w 1,11 ,,r, ,i r,; ::~,)';',.., r.-.,,. •' C ,, in ·r~r;1r =~:r.i !o<( s 

":'-r •., :hi• !,~1 ...... r ,r:11 ..... r r.-.-:,"lf"Tf) ... -~ .1'. I~ ,- ,: ll:l, t l 11 (r , 
••.l •·f;: , ~_1 ; , 1.•.1: I'~: 1•1 T U->,.!. ' ,: 11 ~1•i..\ •'I:;•, l• .: Ul • ,,· (; 1• •1• : 1 
l•HIJ /.•. T; -'1.,tl • t~-"-,H:; , t>'! (11'\-l(ot •~fH'J!t-11( 11"\ lo~t '.,11J .. 11 i, 

!'.~t::r:: a Mo;:,.,ur .. vHn 1: r4 .:t.1 u"f , ... r. 1.11,r• '-"O'C ' ":·.
t;r :,,•, ,.~ , ~ ... s ,.,,:· "'·~ ... ... r 'lh l\j;,1,:i -(;.i }• ,~<••· l!: 1·'\.! :;(•• 
•rr;•:.>v;': "r 1- ,: 11,•J 1-0-• •u., H c,n.i1 c, ~ce:,.:. 1:,w<:.:• 
,,,,,-.. ,:, .. •. ,.?;, :,, ;, t •• T!• 11.', 'T•~"r"' ~ :r P~:.1:u, .. h.,; .• t ·~·.1.J.1 ,., ·1 
►•.:o;,tr .. ·1u1 ,,1.11 ~ -. :,1 ru~1~ ·ll ,. , ·• ·•~ t,,· <;..'Itri:.-. 

·~· 1 I. r,,, ,.,.,,1, ~• •·,-•o 1,uf.:11 ,., \~'(:~ 1; 1•/ ' ,u:11 /.l t\L ·,• >.c::11:1 
W(,JC1\.•fJl ~ , :f';! " no::.o ,,.l.! 11•11:t. • ~:r u~~ r•J~ LU. :IJ:,. :c.,,--.. 
• <f a.',. 1··1:, ••~r ,,. . ..,,~ ,.,,u,~. , :, vu• 11.111,;-11 • !1 n ) !";fl'. ,ro ~,v ~ • 
Z•J'J• . 

., ~-·( 1'1iC"( P 1, ~ ,:, ... , 1-fl'L:"1 •$ ; (., i:c, ·r.-·· '"·'"• c:, ·t .. 11:1~ : ; 
I"_,.,._., .,:;, :!'J •.t>J,; :;_:i,; ,.::,•~ f,\ L t,$ l(.\~0-.:."i, 
n::,;1 , ......... ...... ....... ]~· ( '1 (\.lli,,,,L ""'Q ,,;1 1 11:; -; 11:wl' . .., •1~ ,tj 
'>{I( •. , • 110111~•. ,r.,11 ,1.1 .,,n l(.""•";1, r.1..; : •·~ :,.11:) 
""''':,, '-t ; u:,i1•. ,.,1.i~. ~.,,, '" ~u :nc ... -.:_ ,,y rt:~ u,i ~1 ~11 
11c.o.~ . ... ..... ....... ··- .1~·,:•~; t,t)-1114~ u~·c-.;: .... _ :q1,:-.,. rr•, ~'"' 
1'11: l ~-. r. M1--..:P"II~ .-..,o~ ·o ::.-:t,\PU;1Do •.r :••r...-~ "'l ')l;U.ll: 

, , ~-r r.-.,;.i n~ ~11a:,,;~t. • 111'.">t.H 
ctw ir,:ft:,O;~t•. l!J,,tl!ll. 
.;,,-1 r.,;r,·,:. ~ -.; r p 
1.0.IJ~'"' . IL'-•L·;;.~ ;1; :1 

· .• 1.- ,-.;,;..,;,>t":r 11 1J> 1ri1u ll); 
O:Ll.:HIT :1· t';OJl•."'I. i;r,;~n,·:tt --~~:r~~' - _ __j : -~ -%.~\~r.'.::.=i .. ~.~ .. ~.,_:,:.><~~ ·:·~~- ':~~~L _· -.~~'"' ' .... :;. c~.;-_:,~r·~~-:,::.~.;, .. ·\: ~.: ~I~:f:'"\.:. 0}!\~. 

,... • _ _ _ ;,c,1 ., .. ., ~·.ar-c.lll •-r ~c-.-.;.r¥"' ,.,.,n , ,r. s ... v.~ o:- .o. .,..,, 

··~1 }trl -;~'7T .. ~1~~1:i'}~~~"';;rl·~~~l·~ln,:~~f r: IItf ~l.{tI:i~~g 
'.:.--. 1l I i · 1 · - ~ 1 •-- ir--, n ;r1 ;;;;;,~~;,~~.•;;;:~; ;;);~··,- ""'"'"""""'""'~, 

·,.:. ,:- 1·.:-~,¥ 1"1 ,,· 
' ~' ...,, -~ •tu. -~. .,,."'-= ,, ; ... ;~:.-. ,.. "'., ) ... ~ . 

- 'II.~ ' . · ··~ . , ... ·.-·.· 
.... -~,,:: 

."~~ti,OCJI 1CJ'OII 
(1"l l \:I '.A:J'I ... I.W-. _,.:-;r ~H I n,.,,~·z:: ,.,,.~.11 

"T.'ll ' l:.J. I 
:\ n . ~hop (J.H[t 1;nrnp lJ Cu ut.rnl ~bp f 



ltJ~U ~;Bill Hf H~~ §ll :IJ 

'if~ 
l••~ ~ 

m 

[~ 
' -·········· jl' ,•.-•-1·, z 

-J!" !n "1l . 8 
0 (S 

■ 
j:l ii' ill ; < 

" I 
> s 

• ! >t'5r I 
::l ;l § -

{ f~-i~ 0 ~ .... ' £z z . .::r 

iS > 
~ " 

s 

. 

( :IJ i 
[n 

[:Z -< , 
I J 

. 
n ':,.,,,1 i-~,1r:~:;_ 

);> .., 
(/) 

~ 
l~!'---·1:..f1. m 
! ' -:'~;r-.( N 

Cl 



/ 

I 
\ 

\ 

I 
V 

■ 



I 
1/ 

\ 

,I 

I ,, 
/ 

--· .... .,,• 

~ 

Al 

..,J:~ 

,,/··:' 
I :!!t~101IOll(it.lOl,l ..-,O\IT'IL,t,¥QIII 

· ·; .. 



,·, 

. ' 
. ~ . 1 . . \ • ' _,_.,_,,_.,_.,_ ---r-- ' 

J J l 
11 

I 

id~· .... -0 .=r .... . 

i ~ J ' ' 
)> .., 

en 
m ■ 

. 
. . . 

"' 



7 rJOWN5rOUT CO LI.ECTOll 
""' ~:'.,.tU-- -----

4 SIDEWALK AT CURO ,\ND GuTJ"rcR 
•.01u11 

8 FLAG POLE BASE ASSEMBLY 5 CONrnETF. CUllB AN~~!!nm 

9 6 CONCRETE VALLEY GuTTER 

1 

2 

3 

i •r:,,13 <~•11~')1 r ....... ,, ,·...,u,u.:itii. ,.-.1> ,,c..,11 a· ••u1 u ,ow, ,(•,r 
:;1;,(Wl 1,~ou1....:;ot; • ll 'l• t l 

CONCRETr: SIDcW.-\LK 

E)(PI\N$IO N JOINf 

,-;~~:~~:;::~~➔~ 
(.UY{~_,/ 

comRcuoJ~ r 

FO(JTTNC Dl'MOl.ffiON 

RI 



I 

3 

-' .~Hf~:trn ~rrn MIX~S USING NATIVES O.R. N:,TUR.AUZED ?[ANH M~D 
?L"NTING C,\TES 

ALLOWr\SL( SHD Mr:.::s /\NO N.ANW,'(, DATtS 

,-~---,--- -
........ ,.~,~ ...... ·-·1 JITl /• 1111: , 1~ • . 11 

• 11~ 11 111·, .... .:,,, 
,111• 1.:0•11 

...,_.; II - •..;f. I~ 
'-' • I •-~•H:~ 
. ... ,: . ,v,;u 

•11,:.t· !thW~ll:ll• •Y~ 11-•. t,t I \Hl 1 - 11~ 1 •1 
l!l(,!.ln•,:1 l,lu l-dll ·"•• hl' .r•~ 

•.' l ~IJ[UV. 
·-nC1"'·a•,1 

•:,:-c111111·. 
\• ,.ILf;,o.· ~c..:1 

"'J:.11-Ufll ...... , ..... ,, 

•t<: 11-•w:. lO ,.,., ~_., ,o :o 
.. r , 11 : ~ • ...,,.r II 

•;urn ,111.n•t "' 
•a1 ,,;iu•1<.u1; 

:,,,.. , • • t.(11\;.u.'< 

HUO•..l•L>., . .... . ~l': 

• ••~lliJ>•:,\h•:~ 

1~\1"'1 1 t.1ut\ l lV 

ic,rc-c~ r:-,;1 ,, .. .,,:,.:.., .. 
•!>hi" Ill• • 

ll.:;:l!t•:t\;001.'I 

·••1• ·· ·•'-"· ,\,....•u-
'"n 

...,,.,,_,:,0,:1 
• J .:. •>•H•:.1; 
, .. , , . ,•u;e 
u•:;,.,~U I\ 

•/1::41l fit,•. 
u c,: tV~l{L1J':llf 

, ~..:; I\ •l :,>.;; It 
, ... , 1 - ... ~.~ :~ 
,11,1~-,a r~ 11 

:1.•c• .. 1,,u,.,, .. , 

•11~~·;~11~. '~/::❖~!·\~ ~€{·~,~~~.~: 
:.i:·:~H~:; ~::.·: :!;-.\, ~1;:':~~~~:J-1Y 

,Jl~ rT. {1r,. 
"t: t>l\ •••1-40"{! 

•!lll:"HIV. 
" ~" •'.;,,.:10:ui.._1 

~U.: 1\ •• \ r'PI • 
V Ul -4/ l l 

• i ~ :l-•'-f,I; 
\Hl\.'°U~· 
•• '•' P • ;\:•,;. 1\ 

; I .,_.,...,,a,. l'I,~_., '()l'j 

'""11•~011•.•.-

•.'l~l'11!N. '-'I;; l'-110!1 1:11 l•\J.rl 1\ 
..,: .. ., w~u-..v,.:1 ......,, 1-u~ 1 1.u , .,\••'· •·' 

----
• •·•·•"'• ••"• · " ·• ·•• ••·•• ...... .., ...... ..... , ,••·•·~• • "" •·• • . ... .. n . . . .. ,..,,,. . , 

1 :~-P ...::•.~,:::.:•I,~:::•:· .. :~--::·• ~::.~:.-~,. ••U•lf• •••• • l•w• .,,._. _, .......... ,., ., .. •'""' 

-----. ~~}::~;:::~::•:i~:.,:;;0:-t ,._.,. •"•· .. ,., •••• •• ., .. "•• ' ·••n••·•' •'·,,., •·••••' 
''"·' .. " " ' ... --- .... , .. , ..... " . ' ... ' . , .... , '· '. " ... .. , ... ' .......... ~ .. ". . .. ,. ~ ..... . .. 
~•~'"·"' .. ,.;· , . "' ..... , . .,,. , , .... ... ~" ... . .,,, .... .... . "' .. i . ''"""''" ' .. ~ . ,, .. , ,.. 

I•••••, ..... ,:.:!'.:,' :: .. •::;;.':. '.,.",•.•I:;',:.:.~: .. ~~~.•,•;,~.~:;;:,. ~ ., • .•~ .- • ~~· •~• •••• •• ••• •< 

;:::: :;•;·;1; •C~;; ~;;,'c ~~, .'.::~.~.:'. ;•-- •,. ., ..... ... ,,,. , p•.r• ... ·, ~- , .... . ~ •• ·• ... .. 
:,:,:·.,.:··.":'~:~·~~ .. ~ .. ~ ,,.~: .. . ·.,:.~ .. , ...... ,., ............ , ... "' .. . · ""'·""' ...... , . ...... ,.. ... . ... . .... f, .,, .... .,. ........... 1, . ... .. .. ... .... , . . . .. . .. ... u,·••· 

l'EHMANENT VEGETATION - REGION Ill ® 

:~ 10,1,nr•:-c•·· 
te, •CJ>U.•• ~IVI\K!>"' 

2 

II" .. "'"":" 

j 

,,..,:, :•n~:, ~ ... a II~.,,~ .... ''l•~ l\••l'I 
{H;1.-.. ,, .. , .. r,n••11tMll .. lV.IO• 

;i:c;!;.f~.:;,::!.~:::~:',~1.~,~•~~c1 •• 
1ou.•,~· u,>1o,,;1:;ooo1•"- lr.1 

Tt:Ml'() llAllY 51'.WINC. IU1C"0:\1f.ND,\ T l()NS 

' ""·"" , .. , ............ ........ ~ .. .,.,,.,,_.,,,,.,~ ... , ....... """" ... ....... , .... , 
l. ."!.~(';t.::_'!.~.!i."!!•.::.·•'..!. 

... .... . ~, .... .... ,, ..• , ... .... ,,, ... . , .• ,,,,,1,,, ... ,.,, ...... , , .......... . .,, ...... ............. ~ ....... 1,.-. - •.•••.••.. 1 

.... .. ~ ......................... .,.~ .......... ... ... . ,~",';~:• ... ::-~~:•.;~;t .... , .1, •• ~· ..... ,, .. _ .. .... , ..... .......... ,_,,,. , ·"" 

TEMPORARY VEGETAllON ® 

-RE 





g1p 
·'•' M ,lo D 
!'11 h, ® ® 

'U 11 • 

" 
© 

~ 
!SI 

,a ® 

!l I' 
□ □ ·! 

r' !i .. , 
D !,! D 

111 
i§? D 

•I 

n. □ □ 

n llll l~ t ~II ~ll 

~ 
® 

11r 
I 111w·r~ I ! 
!! 1 ~uni 111 11m d 1~~ 1;1n;m1i1 

~ ■ I ~ 
~2 l,11A•!11lil 

Jim ~11!,l!i ·j 
► ~ z:i j '1l'1!if' I i 
I\) !~ ,1J: lir:h 01 

m 
I\) 



0 © 

© 

1lii I nr·r1 ~ ij, ljfa 11! 111 

~ 
~i g .,i 1 

u ••l1i glg!g I 'ii ,~f 11 ~ ~~ I . ,•11 ,hM1flt 
)> :nr !;l!,'31 •'I 

I !~ I '1i ~••·i ''i I •Ill' I\:> - • l!j1~,f 
0) i I •~• I. "' 

■ 



~ EAST MECH. f'Uil'FCAA Pl.AN .... ,~ 

~ WEST MECH. Pl.A 'Tl'OIM Pl.AN 
~n-.r< Alll:ACU"0.1-J.Ca:U 

Ill! 
~ 

~ SEC0t() LEVB.. Pl.AN 
n-,,ff" NT~fHSl-£5 

~ 

-

-

2 

! 
• s 



u l""'.,,.,,. .•. "''"'R'··· li lililiaifii! 11l1l1 II II! ~ 
~j ~ 1il!ll 1

J 1!! flllll!!. ttl!! Pflm!! ~ ll!1t -
! 'u ~ U 'I·! i i • ~ I' I . 

l I I l i I I 
H • l ---~~ 1 s --- --- - - .. -- - _,, 

I - ----· ... .. ... ...... ., .. --- - .. .. .. 1i,.,=::-
-·-I . ~-""" . .... 

. ....... •::T'° ... ·-· .. "':S~ 

' 
,, 

' ";':'"':' ':OS: --: - -: ~ ,. ' - -·; -- - .. -- -~1 
•w-............ . --· - . .. .. , .... .... , .. ,. 1 ., .... , . , ~~ -- ""='q -... . .~ ·-· . ~~ 

1 
. .. . . .. .......... ,:,,~ 

- - -- ---- ------ --- -· -- -~~1 

' ' ' ' • • ),,J:::-: 
... . . . .. ...... ... ~ 

... .. . ·········,. .... 
-· - --- ~ --........................ ... ... .. . .. ..................... . ........ . . .. ' 

~ ...... -. ~~ ·-........... ... ,._ 
""""'" ,~~~w111 :mim; ljjjl 1p l 1p1 

11,1r 
j ! a 

.111 .. 1.11 .. , ' ' . ' : • ~ I • ..... ... I :m:l~IL ifiiiW: mp ip I n; ii 
1111 11 1111 mi,' I I i HI!! !1! I l~!t ;I I 

i! & 
I 

~ : i 
1!~ • 

e .. ! I 
i . ' i ! l ; ! 

! r r I . 11 

I I I 

! I 

'Iii l(JI I ~1 ~ 

1rm 111 J] p 
II 

z 

■ r 0 

i1 z ,i~, i; 

! §~ ~ ,,, ::I 

gi ~ ,ti ~ 
!~!! " l iJ )> I 

I -< 

~ ltJ! IJ,~:u ~ "' CX) "' 



-

@McflOA B..EVAl10N 
~ff 00Cfl'WA"f11Al~r 

@ McflOA B..EVA110N 
i:.,. Mt CPE>ffJ AT tJ0 

@SEAI..DETAL 

-F 

~ ELEV A l10N 
OH' co.mmo,, 

t-OffilWHJ. 

D 

I 
IQ] IQ] [Q) IQ] [Q] ; 

~-----'~-f--~ D 
ll 

'ITEflOA a.EVA TION 
.,..,. COJnf«:O,f 

$0,IIHW,lr(J. 



------ .. ·-

@BL\RCED F
U

N
 

~
 .... K

 
l
~

 

@BURCE>PUN 
-

.
.
.
.
 

J
II/E

,A
(E

-N
:1

\G
E

 
a:a:: -".l'G

h
llE

 

0 JZ
Y

N
O

T
!!9

-
N

e
A

 C
P

 fB
\IC

Z
. 

-
o

a
,
-
-
.
.
.
-
•
f
t
f
t
.
l
C

 

•---•••-.....--r.,.;ia,,-.: 

A
R

E
A

 O
F 

R
E

FU
G

E
 

ig.,y.., 

• 
',!

••· 
···-

·
-
~

 
~
 

""""'-"""TD
tl 

0
=

-:;::~
~

1
••----

<
r>

~
,~

----..-c--

PV
s!ir<>RtmP 

p 
r'\••-

.. 

-
"""' 

,.;. .. -;;; 
r. .,,. ... ,._

 .. ., -N 
,1.1,:aQ

P
'C

S
IIU

. 
'

t
-
.
 ... 

...,.._ .. _ 
'0

1
IO

I.M
'!a

~
-

1---
-- ;f(,U-Raa.sm

tM
l;f. 

L
 ••. 

·
-
-

,..-.::.,. 

~-=~: •
1

t~
 

y/lllL
A

O
P

JIIIJ'U
C

N
!~

 

~
~

.,:.;:..-----
~ -N ----~--· 
--

S2}(j\. ---
~

-,~
 

rffW
!lllP

'C
..1

7
 

--
', 

@
C

ETA
L SECTION 

~
~

I
I
H

"
I
.
.
I
G

:
:
P

t
o

 
IIE

O
t.P

\.A
lftH

I 

■
 

B
 

film
thon 

C!!ounhj 
C1!ourU/mmr 

R
EN

O
V

A
llO

N
 PH

A
SE

 2 

C
E!IC

::l"I ce
'B

.D
'tE

N
T

 O
O

C
U

l:H
M

 
H

01.J'a. ~
 -

,_
 __ 

1
1

1
1

1
:_

lV
u

.-w
-.., 

f
>

C
-
a
;
:
v

t
-
a
o

u
r
"
Y

'l
1

"
M

1
'Q

&
(
'I


I
O

-
•
:
.
t
-
.
a
.
.
-
,
-
u

r
.
-
1

1
v

 

£1~1~ 
E

N
LA

R
G

E
D

 P
LA

N
S

 
A

N
D

 D
E

TA
ILS

 

,~, 
=-~~ 

A
3

9
 

..,._
.,,._

 
. 



I I 
I I 

I I 
I I 

u u ,,"' 
!l ii 

! I 11 l 
i 

i : 

' II 
~~ 

I If 
9 

a, 

t II a ! I l I I I 

l"!I 
iii 
I t 

mm 
)> ~z )>r; 
vJ :::l::D 
:......... oCJ 

0 
zm 
CllO 



I 1 11 i I I ' 

' I i ' Ii~ 
,- 7 ' l l I I 1111111 1: 1 I 11 . 11 11 i I l l 1 ; I I 

1-'--'--'--l---!-"-'-"--'-'-'--'--'---'-·'- "f- --

1 1-i I 1 1 1 11 I 1 Iii I I I I I II 1111 

I I 
' I l i 

I i I I 
,~~m~ 

' 1 1 1 1 11 1 11 111111 

I I :' I I I l I I I i 11 i I I 111 I 

iiii 1;w·'il'~1 s; c1j1• * ~ i di 1§1 
I 1,1111 !If ~~ (' '! • 

~ 

■ ijilf 1!1'1!1 
!1 

di!: ~ tim 1 [!l m 1.11;,i:llii !Iii ~ g! ~z 1 1h I .' iH ~ )> ►~ •i,)!! 'li -< :::J Jill !! 11!' i iP ~ u) ~~ l;!!il:f :_. cno I -~, I. "' ...... 



/ 

It 
11 

/ 

i! I 

! ~ 

~~ i~ ! . 
~ ~ 

~ ~ 

j !I ·~ 
i I j~ 

J u 
i 

., e, .~ 
' ii I 
j i' I 
I 

Ifij 11w··r1 §; i!tli ; 1H r 111 1 ,,;Ilg ~11 z 

■ r ~; ,,ii, 0 

'; 1:l1lt1~1ii 
11 

i!di ~ 1am §~ m 111,/arl ilH ::I 

2 
)> sP~ +~~ !i:1:1:11 !· ' i I -0 IJ ~ ffi~~ i;f, ,1 i ir I 

(..:> I I )> 

:..... :!!OCl 9 ' I Rl 
I\) 

rzm ii ' a I. 
j 

CllCJJO 
N 



I ~; p ii IHi'Pi ~,~1 ! n F!jl ~~ H ~·1 ! iqi 
! I' i 1~11111 iii j 

~~ e. 
I I I I •• I I .i 11 

' • I I t •I I· I l •& 

ft , ' ''; I i r.~ 

i ' 
I I !fl i ~ 

1 
H 
Ii 

i ; 

511~ ir i! r~ a UI ti□ 1• ! F !' I 
Hi'[ U 'I 1 

! 111 ii ~1a, , r I! I 
! i• I l g! i i1 •• . '- . • fl C 

I l I 

1 n 1 1i 11n1 ~ti 'I em 
' I 11:!A 

&. 1~1 
~ 

1. • .ii r t 11~ 
m I l •: 

lei ill ws ~l.i 
i I 

i i II 

I 
Ii 

Sa 

PU ,u i~w •, I 

'ii ;IM 
. 1' •f1ii 
I I! ,I 111~: 
I 1! H .. 

1 
Ui!! • 

~ii ~~ !1!1 

~II ; Ii a B 
I N 

:1 
e 

"' 



@
J

A
A

E
 D

E
TA

L 
@tt:AO/Sl.l. D

E
TA

L 
W

 
>...,_N

I' 
H

EA
D

'"' 
....,..,.. 

C
i::) JA

A
E

 D
E

TA
L 

,~HI' 
co

,,n,.!M
n1tfi 

D
C

O
IT

IP
E

S
 

fITTll roo □
 §l 

~
~
~
B
J
 

0
0

0
0

 9
0

E
D

..l£
 

~
".l~

-,1
 

..--..-F
 

.,_ n 
.. .;; 

.. ;;;; 

=
 =
 ,m" .... .. -;;;;; 

,. 

C
 

0 

·-'<-: 

i
e
\
a
-


r
--

-

□ □ foal □ rrn ~ □ 
g g illlli 

~ 1 u 
I~

 9,c
=

~
-I~

!~
 

l~"""'-1~.-.._!"""°1~"
0
"
'·' 

....... 
-
-

0
-1

'7
' 

_Jor"_ 
~

-
.. .,r 

0
1

1
..--

....... 

~
 

- ,;-
-
;; 

---

.. ... 
... ~
 

... 
~
 

"' 
... 

'&
I 

.. 
,;; 

~
J~

::.~
~

---
-
-
-

- :;;: :;;: 

!
~ 

"' .; 
-

-.-., 

-·'"'" 
~
 

... ... .. ... "' ... 
"' 

~
 

-
~

....;
 ... -.-,-·oo·sa 

"' 
J
~

-
.,,..f..,a

-.1.•111· 

... 

::' ae=,1:e:==S"~~=-p;~~~_,-.__." _________ ... _ ----
.,..1=

-=
-~

...=
i1=

.~
ci::=

~
~

::-=
,,..-=

.:=
--.. -.:-::1

:::.~
-=

=
=

.:i,;:-,:~
~

~
~

-.-,. 

.. 1 
U

J 
@

J
A

A
E

 D
E

TA
L 

~
 .. Y

l'"
N

I'-
-c

.a
w

.A
f:IU

I 

=
=

=
 

..::S,11'1(---
·
·
-

S
1

.-
1

1
1

 .
.
 ~'l;lll;"',.,..f'CP'I•' -

m
E

a
1c

,
_

P
l
 _

_
_

 .,
.
_

.
.
.
,
,
_

 

----
-

-
'0

1
0

1
: _

_
 _ 

~· ... ---
-

..... l ...... T
l
f
O

'-
-
-

•a
..u

..---"
fft 

,.,. .... , 
"'°'"'°"°'-•-

•II.I.---_, 
-•1

.-.:..1
1

1
c
a
...a

,u
.-.,0o

-c
u

-
'"

°
-
-

-
•

1-...111ai"'°"'°'_,,,.,o..a..11oo-..,_ 
~--..., 

1--~
--

-
~

.e_,o,-..,,~
,a-~

•-.c
,r4

1
-w

 

@tt:AO D
E

TA
L 

~
-
~
~
 

AT :H
.lllffi 

.....,_
 

-~ 

~
~
-

11 

---~~ 
@
~
~
~
~
U
I
 

IE
W

a
'B

tllG
S

 

tf:W
-1 

t.F~ 
- _,, ta

'I
 .... ,

.
_ 

--~ 
,,_..,. __ . 

_,,_., 
~
 

.. ,o,,,._ 

--~-··
-

1
1

1
-----H

+
--~

 

~
~
 

·--~- ■
 

Iii 
illoubon 
~
 

C
!!ouril)O

U
!!l' 

R
E

N
O

V
A

TIO
N

 P
H

A
S

E
 2 

~
~

i
x
x
:
u

e
m

,
 

"•--~
'IO

U
._

T
l_

'J
 

, .. _ 
_..._.....,.., ... _

_
 C'I_ 

•11-
.. C

lff-•---111,;,1 
-~°'"--•~--
~~~~;:~ 

O
P

E
N

IN
G

S
 

1~
1 

1
1

:
-
1

:
&

-


____ ,_
~

 
,..._

.,c
,_

 
A

5.2 



Ii Ht- .. a,;f 

in 
l ! a • 

~ 
G 

i~I 

~ 
~, 

d i I ! ~ h1•1~'i !, 
)> ffi •I qa ·'i • 'il'~j·p I 01 ~ llf: !!1f~ti t, co -~• I , 



D • D 

.,.. ___ -..ell ...... 
_ ... r...:JlMCLlll .. l'tD_.-.,. _ .... ,.....__._.._.,-.w. 
OaC'llQ;-.-W..cwt-tC, 

D 

D 
[lE 

D 

_.,.._,.IUP'!vnO,-"lr••--'•11 
--tc'IQI 

-•-11.-,oca~,....,..,..,o■-,_,111,,..--..---~ . ..., .., ........... 1 _,11,11..,,#C.., ___ , ____ ..,__ , _____ , .... , ..... 111.,_ 
•--•a-".......-

.m 

,-------, 
' ' ' ' ' ' ' ' 11 IL 
' ' ' ' I I 
I I 

I : I I!• 
-j I 

, __ ,..,.•*· .. ,_,......_ 

[II] 

I I 
I I 
I I _ _ L ______ .J 

□.□ -=--
ll!l 

D. D 

=r...,,,. 
- 11:!l 

□.□ 

-1:Nll:U'M---~· .,,..,o..,,_,..rtD-..i. 
~ fER.ECTE) Cl:LNl Pl.AN 
~ J/W'\i4' BA.IEJoEt(J lf~U 

....... .. . .i ... 141 

-

• 

!! 

.. 

D • 

i 
• 



■ 
. 

. 



l8l 

l8l 181 l8l 
C8'.l 

= = 0 • 0 • 

O• I O • • II~ • ~ 
llLL--t-~-~---+---n1= [ = 

0 ' 

0 

o• o • o •o o i •:!!~ ~Uj ! 
0 !SI • 

o ,jr;j • ojfil !SI 

♦ 

llL_L___j_~---1---,r11l=l = 
0 • 

==-
IZI C8:l o O~ Q 



r--c::::1,t---='~~~· 
.... -............ ~..... oGJ..l-·CaYMl~-..1• 
_,,_,...,TUto.l'l'lol 
l"'D'lO,<UO,PoQI. 

_rv_.,..,._,_,..•~.-..?1.~ --- ........... "'t•,.,.. ~ .,.__ ..... ·--» _,. 
.....,:,10Y'Ofl1r,.--n.~-...u--~ 

@BASE 
8..1 RU ICU ffiD W.lil. 

NlWCII--M~._,, -~-,v. 
DaTMl-_,• 
~, .... 101c.nc, 
""1"1.&lillUO'lr-a 

"""'9Rl'OOf.,.naCN---"•~1'1M'l.l1'1. l"IIOU: -•-•-10,.._~•••-r..a:--.-.. 
-01~1111"1-.--....--. ..... -

@BASE 
f I\U 01 rn.CI-..U.. 

" ,-+D,IIMlm 

1GTW,~,of\Ml .. 1N-.U1>0.l~-..,.1, -.r 
...U•-10c:llf1:l--...i»,QU~•-a•,,;ut-1' 
._..,Q11t11•r,r.-~~--- .... ""4-

l II.LL x;.cl b1l(l( 111,u. 
. wnon'tLD:1tCA,i. 

--~ ....... .,,...,__,_., 
•"-- ---f"'-.;::J,!--~::c~~ -°"~-,-_ .. __ _ 

---------, ... nt1as'l"ICI 
~ .. ,._, .. _ 

-CION0'1'..-l!tlCN-_,.. __ __,,~ -.M 
• ..,,_, ... ,, ... 1'$.._.IM_••s-r...._.,_,,_, -o,~,,~-,-_. .......... 

@BASE 
1 RU£tt lfft:a.WJ. 

""'"""""'-

-

-F 



~-ff-c,oe:-o .. ..,~ 
COO,,,O-'l"ll,DC.",1,C:,00 p __ ._. .... .,__ 

~~-

·-·---~-~·-~ ..... -T 
ICl"90_....,_"'0 

..n!L~t-21.. .,,,,,.,,,,...- , --.0-p,.,.CO., _..... --0-T--U.-CI ---~-y i..;:::.... ~lpl 

~~-=:r 

• 

-

1-tOr ft()(II CCHOTl'IUCTION la QCl JOOJl 

FIRST LEVEL FRAMINC. PL.AN 



hCIP'ff-, t--·• :.=o!:!. w CJ CJ 7] ........ -•. ,-
Q. ... --.. 

~~~~ -..,. .. , ........ 0 0 

• 

SECOND LEVEL FRAMINC:s FL.AN 

=~-'9~~1!~ :::_:,:· 
--·- - ., • .,_,.......,._ I•--- .. "'"'f -..11 .... hh .....i.c..,..i-,i....,,_0-,1--W--• .... -,,, . .......,_..,_ . ._ ______ ~-
2':EL~~:i~-:"!r;:~,~==ll•. 



u 
0 

0 

~ 
~TIAL PLATFORM FRAMING PLAN 

-= []~IJ 

RTIAL ATTIC FRAMING PLAN 

0 

0 

71 

A'' 
.. ,~"' 

I ~
,:}' --··- ~ .. -

~ ---· .. .--~ 
IC>Coaff•~aAD ---~ 

~VAC PLATFORM FRAMING PLAN 

u -0 

0 • 
F 

Pl~ 01,...L,Of"'l"Of OOQ.r'ltHT• 



~f; 
!!I 
~~~ ·~ h· rl 
k ,. 

,; 
~ 

.•,♦ -

;: I;~ 

~ 
0 
:....... 

.,,, 
"" 

! ! ! 

u; n~R Mil 

Hi ;~i Ii mit i! 

a 

,·~i H'~ •1:1i ii1 i 

H! ti! ·a 

Ei ~ i • . 
E E 
s I 

iii : ~ ~ ~ ~ ! 

p . . . • , . 
a' • • 6 6 6 • , 

I I I i • • . . . . • . 
~ ~ ~ r r r 
Ii Ii Ii Ii Ii Ii 

i ! ! ! ! ! ! 
a i i i i I i ij 

I 
I 

B 
C C C = 
C C C . 
H :1 ti u 
E E E 

H II!; 
uud 
" " I 

E 

= . . . 
H ;; 
E E 

H 
i ! 
l l 

! II 

ill 
M 

§: u I i I 

! n=r 11 
= i 

D! , 
• 

t i I ; . n 
! ~ 81 
• • ~a 

• • ~~ 

i a J . . s 
~ ~ j I 
Ii Ii I 

~ 

8 ! i I I • l 

jiiWiii;ti~I ! ! ii 
DBI( tina •! I I ~ imdap!=v • • ~~ 

J!i•GJ!! E.91 C C ... ~ 
& IP Jal!;= 
J JI ijl •11 

c! e! I· 
:; I• I 
ia I 
•i • 
!a ~ 

I ~ . 
I 

= = ! . . iB 

H n ·1 !g 
E E H 

~ ~ ., 
I• I• H 

II I l n ! ! ! B I § i q ! :1p 
I i ! ~ q I ~ n i ~ 6 : 6 g ~ g 

I a • ~ I!;! ! ! ii § • I ~ 

i ~ ii 
g I I ll'i 

i g 1 :,!~ 
! 

. 
I Uil I il 

I 
' ~~ 

ii hH 
I 

iHii;iti~! ' ! !UD 
,;;mn:1 t ! !Hi 
1,1J!l~UI I a I D ' 
Hihi ··= • • • . ti 

• C • ~ ,.~ 

ii~e! ~ 
Hou ~j ; g g i ! ! f;rp ~ 

1:1: 
,_ /I " • i ~ I 

a 
! ! I I g; 

iiJI 5! '-- - i ~ • i C ;ii • !, I I I s I I 

•• I R • ~ ! ! s i~ I ~ p ij • I I: I: ~ G . . •• ~ I I; g 6 e e l I 

i G i1 
I ' 

• ~ ~ f ~ t § 

~ ; f, 1 ~ 
ii ii i ~ . ~ ·m r il ; ;; ' c~ 

~ 
i,., 

i! ! ~ e e e ~ G t m l1! r e 
~ Siu "' ~ 

e ~ ' 
I I 

! 
JS ii ..._ 

~I~ 
~ ~ ~ I ! ,.,~ ....:.. c & _,;~ - C & & 

I e e .!. I~ r T 
1:e 1:e I:~ !~ Iii 

\ i ' • ; ~ Q 

• • ' ' • • 'I 

ii 11 i ; I• I• I• ~ I I 
I ~ 

11 11 
'";i I• i• I• b d 

I ~ • I • 

H ! ! i i I ~ lH!I Pl ~r . . 
n B G g 6 : I· i•i!~if ii 
G G 8 e 

i 1PH 
n6 

8 B 
j ! h •P ii;h ~ 

~ ;tit i I 11 lglS "' 
] !~ij I I p ;.! ~ 

• ~ ,& I ,.. 

~~Bl a i I 'I I ! !ila a q ~ a.a •la 

:0 m rr z 

■ 
0 
< 

tdl:I ~ 
0 z 
-0 
I 
:l> 

8l ,_, 



111 
1=• 

11i!B J 

i-., ·h I ~. I I >" I I 

~ I 
< 

!1 ! I• • 
~ H 

( 

;i 
·♦·, 

·-.'~§~ 
,· ~;:::. 

ll 
~ 

~ ·.• 
~ 

l!li ~ 
1111m~;11 

1! 8,jj ii11:idi'1 ► I !"a1 11 
! r;1 0 

" 11jlii1!! 0 
~ n11 • '•1 

~ ~► - iijdPi!• ~I ~ t .~,-; 
0 G 1 ;Hi if rv 51111 

It u ,. 
il i 

... ::1 
... -1 I 

I --r--

I 
I 

;-~! 

i~ 
ii 
~~ 
id I • 

' 6 

I 
i 
i 
I 

I 

1~1 ,s ~~Iii 1 Ii le.. '. ' F•l :; N I" I a, .g 
I· U 
I ;;&l Ii 

1B•I •D 
s!U 1J 

i j i!,.---,-,,.._ 
' I BK '---,..+'--" r: 
~~ 



-

• 
F 

8ASS.:MENT LE',H HV~C PLAN 
o.t. Vf,r-~· 

FIRST LEvt:L HVAC PLAN 
ltU: 1/(,i ',I( 



"' 



D 

~ ~ .• 

·:· ~~~ =~ 
·i 

S: 

~191 1enm1i1& 

! 
:D 

I !:11 ~a: < ilv ;id;,1 ~r 
■ 

,:1 1;~ 
)> ! () lll!!j~:l!i lilm ; ~ S;:: )> 

11!;i,U:11 ~z z ,, 
s: ~ I 11 ::•~;u, I 

:0 ffi --1, 0 
C,J 0 f 1!1 !'' 

71 !§ 11 ,.., 



-0 
0 
~ 

s 1--•re 
!T 

i; i 'ii! i It ,~Ii 
• HI i; I 

I ~lti 

i"J J. -~ ~ I ' iS ~•r . ~ ! l 
I 

,~, lli I 
!U i,, ,, ~ g 

9" ,a 
~ 

~Co ., • @ I 
F.I I 
I 

,i nr Ii 11 

N 

1 n1II• 1 1 I I I I I I I II I I ! 

!!!! j ! !) !!!!/!ft!! I 
~ s ! 





( ~
-

-;-+ ;c •-• 
•-9 

tr~
-
-
<

-
ii 

t 
--

~ _; .: -
I~

 
. 

[ 
~

,:.. 
r., 

_._ 
l
=

 

1 
, 

i 
: 

n•,,-
Sl 

!' 

~1 
· ;&

J
i\ · fr 

. 
-~ 

:_ -L-! 
~
 

~----::-r---nbr-
-
i
 

1 
;:l! 

M
. 

. ' 
'I 

l
,
C

'
~

 
I 

O
~

/
· 

-
, 

! 
f"'., 

; 
I 

, 

11
--t7~.,gJ;2QQQ_QQ,n-

~
 

1
' 

: 
,J 

=
~

,, 
7 

'.ffi 
jil, 

·: 
_

) -
. 

,' 
\n

i 
Ir• 

l 
i 

fl 
I 

, 
: 

i 
,, 

1
~

; 
I 

f
\·~

,1
 

,.,,.,.,.._I~--" -
i ~-;L;~~;;.-------t 

•n---~
5 q r~

;.s
 __ 

,..!~ ..--m
-

' 
. 

L
~

 
~= 

"-.JV
 

,T, 

~
 ....... 

. 
l!lj• 11•:i 

. 
".'. 

'i 'Ii I 

Ll1mI~[i= -
~
 

--·---
~

 n 
I 

lL-L r~J __ -~ 
-

SECOND lE
~l SMj!TARY Pl.M

l 
PJ.:

•{'f•f-<
 

ROOF SAfllTARY PLAN 
"
"
=

l!f•f4 

■
 

Iii 
N

oubon 
alounly 

<!Iourilyoust> 

R
E

N
O

V
A

T
IO

N
 P

H
A

S
E

 2 

~
o

o
c
u

.
e
m

,
 

_Cl"-ca _
_

_
 _

,_
.._

_
 ...... 

--...-.... ~------,s;,-
1)-~
, ....... ,::rr,u

p
"'f;t 

-
~
~
 

l"
l'!Q

 
... _

_
 

~ :WJ..,.._ 
S

E
C

O
N

D
 L

E
V

E
L

 +
 

R
O

O
F S

A
N

fT. 

-~-
--'°'-
-~-

P1.2 



-
-· 

-=- : t ~' .:,,- . 
• 

1-·----· ~ ~ )L _ !~- l- r .. '"T-= .... :_ __ b!;,!,!J::r,.llll!J_..::, . 

u _ _, _: __ ' - . 
fl ,_ 

~L,,"'IT{ -_:: 
~l] ... 
L=c .c •. ~ ~::=-'~ 

B~~-~~T DOMESTIC WATER PLAN 
FIRST mn 00~[5 = ,,,..,-4 TIC WATER PLAN 



~ LEl'H 0()!,IESTIC WATIR PLAN 
u.c:r,r.r-, 

ROCf DOMESTIC wmR PLAN 
Dl·!l'• f-¥ 

i'. lhCllflY 
A_ mrm1 ¥ ; CO:OUlTAHTI, llC 

-

-



HI i !!!I 
f l iii 
i f il • I !1 l n l p i { ~ i 
' " i 

l:' I I • 
~ f I m 

f ~ 
i 1 

~ 

i ii ii n 
~ ~ .. i ' ii 

lj q ' 1 
, 

D90 • fl ill • 11 ■ 11 • • I ii I Iii I I I II liJ 

H.4-l+l+++H· · ·· ·H+t+t+-H+l+++·H -1-1 

ru'-'-'--'-_,._,__,_l .!...C.!-'C!.CJ....c..:...!-J..L.L'-'-'-'..!..l..!.J..L.L'-'-'-'--'.-.!...J 

jj I 
ii 
Ii 

i n p: n1 n H 
f l I i l H1 fl r i q I~ ii ti l ( ~ 

n ·q 11 p 
'f ~ I I I • g 

~ _ij p i 1 ! ' ·' f ' ! i i ii I ·~ ~ j; 11 

J i ~ ~ 

J 
ii ! I i ' • L L .. Ii ij L. = • g C 

n ' l I I .. 1 " 

l 
, 

fl H if JI n p l I 1 i rqn n -c 
!!!. ii! 

I 1 i n ~ I • l J l I , f qi f o= 
Tl !J • E. 3 

l I ! I i • I QI -
i 

rl lI H ~ 
~. ~ 

· I • d !I, g '< 
J l' '~ ~..., 

J H iI ~i:: 
Ill In 

' ~ 
~ ::1"'C 

~ ! ' j q • l ~ i ::i. 
~::, 

p I a 
, . Ii 'It!!: 

~ i ~ '~ 
l I I 

~!!l 
£ I,- ~ 

~ i I 
l. 
B ? :~ 
! ~ -. ,. 

;.., " 
e Y ! Ra ~ i ~ ii ,h I I r I I 

' ! 
n n ! , ,. 

__ .__ ______ __,.__ ___________________ __, 



' !! 

il i: 8 
' 

• ii 

"' 



-] :-::-

r--=~r---i=r~ __ : ~. ~~i-~ ~:~l 
a~ l ~~~. ••&a ' O n rJi====._ 

,,Q,. ~--E:::,,.,==.=--'lH=~L.,~C,..=·····----l :~~ 

¾ 0 0 ~-

I rl 

/~~:~ ·---. --.. . -·· ;::r 
•□ 7::lO. □ C 

~ -_'.:,:J ~ 

,•i,o O • ' D _ 0 D, 0 -

- _j_ __ ----·- 7 II]! .Q l .., ' 

,--~ . ~ n_~ 

BA!x:MENT FIRE PROTICTI~ Pl.AN 
u.£:1/f',i'"" 

t -

.. 
===: ·. 

~r=~~~- ·-
] 

·-----.-
r'·T,---'~' ==='.Jl~~~,,__-;---j 

- __ p 
-J ,, ······-· 

r ... __ ii 
.... ,,.- . ,_,, --·······1 .. f\-,,ti='-=,___,=•. ::::;:;--;;::.:.....L~I"-~'---="-' 

FlRST mn FIRE PROTECTION PLAN 
P.1: 1/(•r-r 

. .. 
' ..... 

-

• 

, lYllltll . ' 1/Jlllll l 
,~ . (OHIU~l~Hl, ll ( ! 



-

f r:~ / 
• -·--··· 10 F 

--I-

I 

~ 
'--- -'-----'---L.._:='.J 

SECC@ mn flRE PROTICTI(Xj PLAN PAATIAL M[ZZANJN[ FIRE PROTICTIOO PLAN me n'!E PROTICTIOO PLAN 
b.1: 1/f•I'.¥ nL 1J(0 r4 Ul.1/f•f-< 

i f,ICIIIIY ] . mum 
,~ .. (OIOU(lAIH l, J.l( • 

, . 
' 



~m 
mfii 
a~ 
l>O z l> mor 

~ Iii 

·I ( 
~ ii 
ti 
a I 
ii 
~1 
11~ 
; I: 
~ i: 
I B. 
ii 
• ~I ~. 
~ JI 
I 
• • I 

t f 

~I ~I 
I !l 
I I 
~ ~ 
'.J ~I I 11 

I ~I ,i I I I 
~l ! :: : 
~I !I 

!1 ! 
1! -: i r . . 
• • l I 

o~ ~l 11 1~ I ID 
I 

$• l!liii u Al 0~ Ill~ ®"" ... @l ~w I 

§I I T! 
i ; i iP , J 

J ~ H 11 ii i i 1• 11 rr• <J i p •: ill rn11 
I ! • •P !l " ' ! ' 1s 81 

Ii I ti h • Ji II . II ! I 
,, - ~;. ~ . ii I ! "i ,I I Iii 

I • 1g t ; j - I J H; I B i1 11 -~ . '1 I 1i, I' I 
'"' • • 8; ~j 

.. 1· I •• 
! i Jfll II I • I • • i ! • It i· . 

~: s, • 1 
I I h1 ,1 l J ·'• ili Ii I q ' I ! 

I I ! I •I . A I • ~ ~ I ai •• I b 

I .. !11 8' I 
9 • Ii i I I I I ~ . 11 !i d I • I 

~ i B, i • i 9 : I 11~ ' ~ 
I I • ; ~ i 11 ~I H eU I I I ' • i I I • 1 <::> 

;: , . • • j K 
. . 1Ail ◄ I 

i I I I : i £ I !· 11 I I I ~I I p : i J i l I I iii 1· ; . I ,g \ a I I I , I I a I ~I I I a II• 
; I • a a ii a i "' I I • A I ,1 

I • I d •• 
! I a • q I I • 5 ·1 
il 

. ; i. I q I !, i I • ! . s • I I f • i 
I ~ I i • a • J fl 
! i ~ i i ! : I • I .~ 
I I r 

., 
I ~ 

lflm■ 
"" 



m 
0 
~ 

r 
I 
I 
I 
I 
I 
I 
I 
I 
I 

fi 
I 
I 
I 
I 
I 
I 
I 
I 
I 
I !r-------,-----
1 
I 
I 
I 

L --

l 

■ 



■ 



m __., 
:...... 

2 
=' 
?i 

11 
1-:i r;:;-- --··· . = =--==-
!!-;I ~r:,r-- 110-,, -1:;;):::'.1 ~~ I 
~~[-~ IL~ ' 

.,!f -:-- - ~ --~~- n~FJ 
. 0 ,, . ., ! [ ... -61 

0 
&.:1,-

"' 0 
~ 

1 ® ~18±:~~;,==~l,J . ~: :--~~ ~ 

·I li<p s e . JE,~~-1 J1 ~. ,ll.UilillL-.-J •1 r ls!J.J~ [. __ _ 
I, _,. ....... ,..,..,~ = -·· --~- .. 

ii 

■ 



'° "'O 

~ 

"' 





BA~I.IENT l£\U COl.l!.IUNICATIOO ANO ARE ALARt.l PLAN 
Dl: 1/(, r«r RRST l[IU CQ\11,1\JNICATIOO ANO FIR\'. Al.ARM Pl.AN 

'DL• l/(• t-¥' 

• 

• 

I 
B, 



• 

f~ _ "· ---~- -- - 1 

·'~~~l 
■ 

\ ,, 
1, 

re-- -----·· 
1 I ---

• == 

~ :=i ' . ·-~ =--~=--t:~-· -\ M7.~ . ~ ""' --- e 

n..Jnmnl .. - = = -!?< .. r=T.1 . ~ ~--1· =--=~==-, .. · .. r ....... -.. .., ... ~ P ARTl~l PLA lf(JU,1 CCII MUNI CA 1100 ANO FIRf Al.ARM PlA!f 
D.1:,..-.r., 

SEC(t!O LE\U CQl,IUUMICATIOO ANO FlRE AlARU PLAN 
Dl:\/f"• (~ 





JOHNSON GALYON 

FebruaJ)' 28, 2023 

Mr. Matt Kleinschmidt 
Loudon County Government 
I 00 River Road, Suite 1 10 
Loudon, TN 37774 

Re: Loudon County Courthouse Renovation Phase 2 
Design Development Budget Estimate 

Mr. Kleinschmidt, 

Johnson & Galyon, Inc. has completed review of the Phase 2 Design Development documents by 
Brewer Ingram Fu! ler Architects dated October 28, 2022. As part of our review and budgeting 
process, subcontractors, and vendors with the expertise of providing certain portions of the work 
required by the documents have been consulted. Combining our own cost estimates with those 
of our preferred subcontractor team members, a budget estimate has been prepared for work 
associated with Phase 2 Renovations of the Courthouse- Interior Finishes and Select Site Work. 
Hazardous material and/or mold remedia tion work is not included. 

The preliminary Design Development budget estimate for the Phase 2 Renovations of the 
Courthouse is Four million seven hundred seventy-six thousand and ninety-four dollars 
($4,776,094.00). 

General Liability, Builder's Risk Insurance, and Payment and Performance Bonding are included 
in the budget. If one or the other is not required by the county, we are happy to eliminate these 
costs from our estimate. Approximate deduct amounts are identified in both the attached cost 
breakdown and our clarifications. (Builder's Risk is included as an allowance pending final 
review of our underwriter.) Please note that Loudon County must carry Property Insurance lo 
insure the existing structure. Loudon 's property insurance policy on the existing structure should 
have a waiver of subrogation in favor of Johnson & Galyon and all subcontractors. 

It is our understanding that a new AIA A I 03-2017 Standard Form of Agreement Between Owner 
and Contractor where the basis of the payment is the Cost of the Work plus a Fee of 8% without 
a Guaranteed Maximum Price Contract will be executed for this Phase. It is assumed that the 
terms and conditions of our previous Contract will be incorporated. A Contractor Contingency is 
not included but it is recommended that an Owner Contingency be contemplated. Johnson & 

JOHNSON & GAi.YON, Inc. I' 0. !',o, 3(!"/0, l(noxvill c, TN 3"/9 -:!. 7, J. 130 Atlilntic Ave .. Kno xville , TN 3 7917 o .8G ';.6~S .l l 1 l f.8GS .688. ll11l '· •· ··•· ,·. :., , .. ·,,, .::•! ·;r.•:; .c:r.•,·11 



Galyon recommends an Owner Contingency of 10% of the estimated cost for a project of this 
nature. 

Please find attached the cost estimate and clarifications for your review. 

As always, we appreciate the opportunity to be of assistance. 1f you have questions or concerns, 
please do not hesitate to call . 

Sincerely, 
.Johnson & Galyon, Inc. 

&!Y~ 
Peter Dunn 
Director of Preconstruction/Scnior Estimator 

Attachments 



Loudon County Courthouse Renovation Phase 2 
Tuesday, February 28, 2023 

601 Grove Street 
Loudon, Tennessee 37774 

Notes Concerning the Estimate 

l) 

2) 

The estimate is based on the following pricing documents: Date 

1.01) Loudon Co unty Courthouse Phase 2 Renovations Drawings 

Design Development 

10/28/2023 

Clarificalions are as toflows: 

2.01) Budget cost for our standard General 1.iability and an Allowance of $35,000.00 for 

Builder's Risk insurances are included. Actual costs wi ll be billed based on completed 

value of the work and the ,rnderwriter's complete review. Deductibles, if Incurred, 

will be considered a cost of the work. 

2.02) Budget cost for plans review and permitt ing are included. 

2.03) Payment and Performance bond budget costs are included. 

2.04) We do not include IT, I.ow Voltage, Data, Communications, Access Control, 

Security, and/or CClV scope. 

2.05) Our budget assumes normal weekday working hours. 

2.06) We have assumed that Loudon County wil l rrovidc parking spaces at or near the project site 

at no cost to construction team personnel. 

2.07) We do not include cost for offsite storage of salvageable materials. Off site storage faci lit ies 

wi ll be provided by Loudon County . 
2.08) Johnson & Galyon cannot guarantee against additional damage to the courthouse duri ng th e 

course of the work. The building structure is compromised due to fire damage. 

Loads may shift during the course of the work and further damage may occur. 

Johmon and Galyon will perform work required in the permit documents in a profcs., ional 

manner but cannot warrant against further damage resulting from latent conditions. 

2.09) Ha,ardous materia l abatement, asbestos and mold remediat ion and/or specialized 

use land fill cost are escluded from our scope of wo rk. 

2.10) We have included an allowance for arborist services and 

tree protection in our proposal. Actual cost will be billed against the allowance. 

2.11) We exclude remedi ation of unsuitable soils and/or rock in excavation processes. If required, 

the most efficient means of remediation w ill be determined, approved tJy the Owner, and 

completed work billed on an actual cost basis . 

2.12) CONTINGENCY - refer to Cover Letter 

Author 

BIF 

Th is budget estimate does not include any Contingency Funds. As this proposal is valid for only 30 days, 

Loudon County should contemplate adding a contingency to address potential cost increases that may 

ocwr between the da te of this proposal and such time a Contract is executed if such occurs later than 30 

days. 

2.13) NO allowance is included for additional Exterior Masonry Restoration. 

2.14) EJ(isting wood base, door casing/trims, wood stair components, and oth er in-place 

trims that are to remain will be cleaned, lightly sanded to remove loose paint, and 

re-painted . E,ctensive restoration is not included. 

2.15) Existing wood base, door casing/trims. wood doors, and other items that were 

salvaged will be cleaned, lightly sanded to remove loose paint. and rc-rainted. 

Extensive restoration is riot included. 

2.16) Ge.otechinical and concrete testing is NOT included . 
2.17) Costs for temporary electrical for building, job trailer. and 

construction needs are inc luded while J&G is on site. 

2.18) The remaining existing subfloor boards shall be removed and 

replaced with 3/4" floor sheathing . 

2.19) Leveling of the floor is not included. New joists sl1all be install ed 

in plane with existing. 

2.20) l&G offers no opinion as to the adequacy of this scape of work to address the 

stability/ integrity of the overall stru cture, building code related requirements, and/ or 

Loudon County future use requirements . 

2.21) 12 months of Gene,al Conditions are included to complete this Phase of Work. We have planned for an uninterrupted, 

single phase construction schedule based on standard weekday workinr, hours. 

Pagelof 2 



3) Allowances included in the estirna tc for major co~t items are summari1.cd as follows : 
Any allowance overages will be billed at actui11 cost plus 10%. 

3.1) Arborist services, tree protection, tree trimm ing allowance 

3.2) Interior SignJgc 

3.3) Safe Door Repair/Refurbish 

3.4) Ouildcr's Risk Policy 

3.5) Soll and Concrete Testing 

3.6) Exterior Masonry Restoration 

3.7) Courtroom Bench Pew Sr.a ting 
3.8) Jl1dge, Clerk, Witness, Jury Chairs 

3.9) Pluster Repair 

4) We have priced (Preliminary) the followinc alternates: 

4.11 Remove Builder's Risk from J&G's scope of work 

4.2) Eliminate Payment and Performance bond from J&G scope 

4.3) Remove Spira l Stair/Enclose Floor Openinc 

4.4) Infill Openings D.58 and 12GB in lieu of new doors 

4.5) Infill Opcninr,s in Room 125 

4.6) Add Opening 120 in Corridor 

4.7) Remove Brick at existing arched opening at Room 123 

4.8) Add Transaction Counter at .117 

4.9) Add Transaction Counter ,;t 119 

4.10) Add Counter with Sink at 111 

4.11) Add Door 2128 

4.12) Add Door 215B to Exterior Stair 

4.13) Add Holdinr, Cells 

4.14) 6 ca new 25' rtaepolcs, Dase, Eaelc fin ial 

4.15) Add Fire Protection Sprinkler System (LUil fees and line to 

propc1ty line is not included) 

4.16) Construct Area of Refucc 

'1.17) Add Automatic Opener to Door Pair 103 

4.18) Add Guards & Handrails at East Exit and Basement Steps 

4.19) Modify Exterior Sta ir Tower 

4.20) Include Accessibility Provisions at Judr,c/Clerk/ Witncss Box 

4.21) Add Ship Ladder from Level 2 to Mech Equip Platform 

De!-i1gn Dcvcloprnent Estimilte Notes 

This Design Development Estimate is prcliminury in natme and must be 

updated upon receipt of 11For Construction" documents . 

Page 2 of 2 

$10,000.00 
$10,000.00 

$250,000.00 

$35,000.00 

excluded 

excluded 

$50,000.00 

$10,000.00 

$202,170.00 

Dedutt -$]5,000 .00 

Deduct -$29,000 .00 

Add $2,385.00 

DcdL1ct -58,025 .00 

Add $'/25.00 

Add $16,802.00 

Add $4,125.00 

Add $24,310.00 

Add $22,243 .00 

Add $13,041.00 

l\dd $13,4G9.00 

Add $18,819.00 

Add $41,589.00 

Add $52,772.00 

Add $296,000.00 

Add $31,019.00 

Add $3,000.00 

Add $13,750.00 

Add $41,580.00 

Add $ 1.5,000.00 

Add $7,700.00 



Johnson & Galyon Inc Spreadsheet Report Page 1 
___ _ _ ______ L_o_u_don County Courthouse - Phase 2 Renovation DD Budget Estima~r:_ ___ 21_2_8_12023 10:46 A~ 

..... p;;~-: -r.;;_1 Doscription Grand Total I SubNond~r/Notes 

01000 GENERAL CONDITIONS 
01312 • SUPERVISION 163,275 

01320 CONSTRUCTION DOCUMENTS 2,500 

01335 TESTING - BY OWNER 

01403 TEMP BARRICADES & TEMP 4,331 

PROTECTION 

01510 TEMPORARY UTILITIES 66,780 

01520 : CONSTRUCTION FACILITIES 12,600 

01600 SAFETY 18,598 

01720 .LAYOUT 12,800 . 

01740 CLEAN UP 73,800 

GENERAL CONDITIONS 354,684 

02000 SITEWORK 
02010 .SITE EQUIPMENT 70,764 

;02220 ARBORIST SERVICES - TREE 10,000 · 

. TRIMMING & PROTECTION 

02225 . DEMOLITION 36,584 : 

02226 ABATEMENT SERVICES - BY OWNER 

02315 EXCAVATION & FILL 67,550 

02370 · EROSION CONTROL 2,400 

02775 SITE CONCRETE 61,150 

02810 . LAWN IRRIGATION• NOT INCLUDED 

02905 :LANDSCAPING ALLOWANCE 15,000 

02920 SEEDING 10,750 

SITEWORK 294,198 

03000 CONCRETE 
03310 CAST IN PLACE CONCRETE 1,300 

CONCRETE 1,300 

04000 MASONRY 
04910 MASONRY WORK 24,000 

MASONRY 24,000 

05000 METALS 
05120 STRUCTURAL STEEL 61,300 · 

METALS 81,300 

06000 WOOD & PLASTICS 
06105 ROUGH CARPENTRY- Framing 94,ZOO · 

i06160 SHEATHING 34,000 

i06161 ROUGH HARDWARE 7,500 

06220 FINISH CARPENTRY 551,155 

WOOD & PLASTICS 686,855 

07000 THERMAUMOISTURE PROTECT 
07210 BUILDING INSULATION 6,400 ; 

07450 GFRC PANELS 

07620 SHEET METAL FLASHING/TRIM 1,400 

07920 JOINT SEALANTS 10,000 

THERMAUMOISTURE 17,800 

PROTECT 

08000 DOORS & WINDOWS 
06010 DOORS, FRAMES, HARDWARE 191,215 

08310 ACCESS DOORS 5,950 

08810 GLASS & GLAZING 1,500 

; DOORS & WINDOWS 198,665• 

09000 FINISHES 
09210 . PLASTER ALLOWANCE 202,110 · 



Johnson & Galyan Inc Spreadsheet Report Page 2 

, _ _ _____ ____ L_o_u_d_a_n_C_a_u_n_t~y_Cf!._urthause - Pl:.ase 2 Renova~(<!.'} DD Budget Estimat:..:e _ _ --=21-=2-"8/-=2-"0'-2-"3--'1-'-0--':4_6:_.:_A....c.:M 

~ 
...... ·-·-----•-•· 

Description ___ /_ Grand Total SubNendor/Notes Phase Gr 
--·- ·-·········--··-

09250 DRYWALL AND ACOUSTICAL CEILINGS 248,763 

09310 CERAMIC TILE 41 ,881 

09620 CLEAN CONCRETE SLABS 1,085 

09640 'WOOD FLOORING 157,850 

09680 CARPET 9,165 

09910 PAINTING 245,786 · 

FINISHES 906,700 

10000 SPECIAL TIES 
10160 TOILET PARTITIONS 21,100 

10440 INTERIOR SIGNAGE ALLOWANCE 10,000 : 

10520 ;FIRE EXTINGUISHERS 4,532 

10810 TOILET ACCESSORIES 13,672 . 

.. SPECIAL TIES 49,30.4 

11000 . EQUIPMENT 
11020 SAFE DOOR REPAIR ALLOWANCE 250,000 

EQUIPMENT 250,000 

12000 FURNISHINGS 
12520 COURTROOM BENCH PEW SEATING 50,000 

ALLOWANCE 

12610 PERSONNEL SEATING ALLOWANCE 10,000 

FURNISHINGS 60,000 

14000 CONVEYING SYSTEMS 
14240 ELEVATOR 98,088 

CONVEYING SYSTEMS 98,088 

15000 MECHANICAL 
15050 HVAC & PLUMBING 594,323 

15300 ' FIRE SPRINKLER SYSTEM - SEE 

•ALTERNATE 

MECHANICAL 594,323 

16000 ELECTRICAL 
16010 ELECTRICAL 536,000 • 

ELECTRICAL 536,000 



Johnson & Galyon Inc Spreadsheet Report Page3A 
2/28/2023 10:46 AM Loudon County Courthouse - Phase 2 Renovat(on DD Budget Estimate 

Estimate Totals 

Description Amount Totals Rate Cost Basis Cost per Unit 
Labor 294,660 20 .344 /SOFT 

Material 775,898 53.569 /SOFT 

Subcontract 3,013,456 208.054 /SQFT 

Equipment 69,204 4.770 /SQFT 

Olher 
4,153 ,218 4,153,218 286.745 /SOFT 

Labor Burden - 37.00 109,024 37.000 % C 7.527 /SOFT 

Sales Tax - 9.50% .. . __ 73, ?J.O 9.500 % C 5_,Q!)9_ /SOFT 

182,734 4,335,952 299.362 /SOFT 

Plans Review Fee - By LCC L 

Permit Fees 12 805 B 0.08:4. /SQFT 

12,805 4,348,757 300.246 /SOFT 

Bldrs Hisk Allowance 35 ,000 L 2.416 /SOFT 

General Liability 9 552 0.200 % T 0.659 /SOFT 

44,552 4,393,309 303.322 /SQFT 

P&P Bond 29,000 L 2.QQ~ /SOFT 

29,000 4,422,309 305.324 /SOFT 

Contin,iency - none included T 

Fee 353,785 8.000 % T 24.426 /SQFT 

Total 4,776,094 329.750 /SQF1 



Johnson & Galyon Inc Spreadsheet Report Page 3B 
_ _ _ _ _______ L_o~u_d_o_n_C_o_t_Jn_ty_<;?_c;yrthouse • Phase 2 Renovation DD B~Jc:/Jl.':!._~s_t_im_a_te ___ 21_2_8 __ 12_0_2_3_1_O_:4_6_A_M 

Percent of Total 
6. 17% 

1G.25% 
63 .09% 

1.45% 

B6 .96% BG.96¾ 
2.28 % 
1.54% 
3.3 J ~'v 90.76¾ 

0.27% 
0.27 % 91 .05% 
0.73% 
0.20% 
0.93% 91 .99¾ 
0.61% 
0. 61 ¾ 92.59¾ 

7.4 1% 



LofAdovi CofAvity Covnvnissiovi 

April 3, 2.02.3 

CoV1sidert1tioV1 of recoww11eV1dt1tioV1 to t1pprove Stt1tv1torl.j 1:?oVld for the "Director of 
Accov\V1ts t1V1d 1:?v1d0ets 



Western Surety Company ©@~IP' 
POWER OF ATTORNEY 

KNOW ALL MEN BY THESE PRESENTS: 
That WESTERN SURETY COMPANY, a corporation organized and existing under the laws of the State of South Dakota, and 

authorized and licensed to do business in the States of Alabama, Alaska, Arizona, Arkansas, California, Colorado, Connecticut, 
Delaware, District of Columbia, Florida, Georgia, Hawaii, Idaho, Illinois, Indiana, Iowa, Kansas, Kentucky, Louisiana, Maine, 
Maryland, Massachusetts, Michigan, Minnesota, Mississippi, Missouri, Montana, Nebraska, Nevada, New Hampshire, New Jersey, 
New Mexico, New York, North Carolina, North Dakota, Ohio, Oklahoma, Oregon, Pennsylvania, Rhode Island, South Carolina, 
South Dakota, Tennessee, Texas, Utah, Vermont, Virginia, Washington, West Virginia, Wisconsin, Wyoming, and the United 
States of America, does hereby make, constitute and appoint 

Paul T. Bruflat of Sioux Falls 
State of _____ s_oJ.l.th _Dako_ta ___ _ , its regularly elected · c_e______pLESJ.de.n .. ..._ ______ , 
as Attorney-in-Fact, with full power and authority hereby conferred upon him to sign, execute, acknowledge and deliver for and on 
its behalf as Surety and as its act and deed, the following bond: 

One Budget Di rector County of Loudon 

bond with bond number ~6~6~5~8~7~6~3~8~-~~-------------------------------

for Erin McKa Rice 

as Principal in the penalty amount not to exceed: $ 1 O O, 0 Do . oo 

Western Surety Company fur1her certifies that the following is a true and exact copy of Section 7 of the by-laws of Western Surety Company 
duly adopted and now in force, lo-wit: 

Section 7. All bonds, policies, undertakings, Powers of Attorney, or other obligations of the corporation shall be executed in the corporate 
name of the Company by the President. Secretary, any Assistant Secretary, Treasurer. or any Vice President, or by such other officers as the 
Board of Directors may authorize. The President, any Vice President, Secretary, any Assistant Secretary, or tho Treasurer may appoint 
Attorneys-in-Fact or agents who shall have authority to Issue bonds, policies, or undertakings In the name or the Company. The corporate seal is 
not necessary for the validity of any bonds, policies, undertakings, Powers of Attorney or other obligations of the corporation. The signature of any 
such officer and the corporate seal may be printed by facsimile. 

In Witness Whereof, the said WESTERN SURETY COMPANY has caused these presents to be executed by its 
Vice President with the corporate seal affixed this 21st day of March 

2023 

~~ 
L. Bauder, Assistant Secretary 

STATE OF SOUTH DAKOTA°) 

COUNTY OF MINNEHAHA J ss 

On this 21st day of -----=M.:ca=r=c~h ___ _ 

------~P~a~u~·l=-T:....,_•-=B~r~u~f~l=a=t=--------- and 

~,., .. t!H,f?tJ:,,._ 

uif :;::;;;::;1~ 
l~\f;:;il/ 

2 D 2 3 , before me, a Notary Public, personally appeared 
L. Bauder 

who, being by me duly sworn, acknowledged that they signed the above Power of Attorney as Vice President 
and Assistant Secretary, respectively, of the said WESTERN SURETY COMPANY, and acknowledged said instrument to be the 

voluntary act and deed of said Corporation. 

+~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~+ 

i M.BENT : 
I I 
$~NOTARY PUBLIC~: 
.r~SOUTH DAKOTA~.r ; .............. ., .... ..,.,..,., .. ., .. ..,..,.,.,..,., ! My Commission Expires March 2, 2026 NolaryPublic 

To validate bond authenticity, go to www.cnasurety.com > Owner/Obligee Services> Validate Bond Coverage. 

Form F1975-11-2022 ,., 



April 3, 202 3 

CoV1siderv1-tioV1 of recoVV\VV\eV1dt-1-tioV1 -to v1ck:V1owled0e TC12.S eVV\ployer coV1-tri\..?M-tioV1 rvite 
effec-t1ve JMly 1, 2023 



Employer Contribution Rate Certification 
Tennessee Consolidated Retirement System (TCRS) 

Actuarial Valuation at June 30, 2022 

I IIIIIIII IIIII Ill lllll lllll lllll llll I II Ill lllll lllll 111111111111111111 

Acknowledgement of employer rate effective July 1, 2023 through June 30, 2024 

Department Code: 0083300 

Department Name: LOUDON CO EMP 

I hereby acknowledge and agree that I have reviewed the background infom1ation on rates provided to 
me and also located on the Treasury Website at: https://publicreports.treasmy.tn.gov. I further 
acknowledge the upward trends concerning future employer contribution rates . 

Please select one of the options below 

D The Minimum General Employee rate and Minimum Public Safety Officer Rate : 
• Minimum General Employee rate: 6.71 % 
• Minimum Public Safety Officer rate: 10.21 % 

□ Optional: We choose to pay a higher contribution of: ____________ _ 
(An additional 3.50% will need to be added to the selected rate for Public Safety Officers.) 

Employer Signature ______________ Title ____________ _ 

Date Phone Email --------- ---------- -----------

The first depa11ment code listed on the Employer Actuarially Detem1ined Contribution (ADC) Rate 
sheet is your master code. The master code is responsible for detennining the rate and submitting the 
completed employer contribution rate certification to TCRS. The rate selected will be applicable for all 
depmtment codes listed on the Employer Actuarially Determined Contribution (ADC) Rate sheet. It is 
the master code's responsibility to notify these departments of the new rates. 

Please return the completed rate certification no later than May 31, 2023 via one of the following 
methods: 

By email: 

By mail: 

TR4170 

TCRS.EmployerReporting@tn.gov 

TCRS Employer Reporting 
502 Deaderick Street, 15th Fl. 
Nashville, TN 37243 

RDA0413 



Lovtdovi Covtvity CoVY\ VY\ issiovi 

April 3, 2.02.3 

Co\llside,rtitio\11 of tipprovtil of lil'le, tldjv1stW\8Y1ts tll'ld/or re,coW\W\8\'ldtltiol'l to tipprove 
tlW\8Y1dW\e.Y1ts il'l tvie, followil'l0 fv1Y1ds : 

1. Cov1Y1f\.j G,e.Y1e.rtll fv1Y1d 101 
2.. Vrn0 CoY1trol fv1Y1d 122. 
3. 1?.e.ve.Y1v1e, f v1Y1d - ARl'A 12. 7 
4. -l-ti0V1Wtll./ Ve.ptlrtW\e.\llt fv1Y1d 131 
0. G,e.Y1e.rnl ~pittil -Proje,cts fv1Y1d 171 



RESOLUTION # 

A RESOULTION AMENDING THE COUNTY GENERAL FUND 101 

TO MORE ACCURATELY REFLECT ANTICIPATED REVENUES AND EXPENDITURES 

FOR THE FISCAL YEAR BEGINNING JULY 1, 2022 AND ENDING JUNE 30, 2023 

WHEREAS, Loudon County Commission adopted the 2022 - 2023 budget that included the County 

General Fund 101 ~n June 27, 2022; and 

WHEREAS, amendments in the revenue and/or expense budgets are now recommended to more 

accurately reflect anticipated and/or known revenues and expenditures for the current fiscal year; and 

WHEREAS, sources of revenue for the amendments in revenue budgets include Local Option Taxes, 

Licenses and Permits, State and Federal Grants; as well as Other Sources; and 

WHEREAS, amendments in the expense budgets will appropriate funds for expenditures that were 

unknown at the time of the original FY 2022 - 2023 budget adoption; and 

WHEREAS, funds for amendments in the expense budgets that do not have a direct revenue stream 

will be provided for from the available fund balance; and 

WHEREAS, the estimated Beginning Fund Balance will be updated to reflect the Year End Report 

(unaudited estimates) or audit (if available); thereby a more accurate budget. 

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED, that the FY 2022 - 2023 County General Fund 101 has been 

amended by Loudon County Commission. 

BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED, that the projected fund balance at fiscal year-end has been adjusted and is 
summarized as follows: 

Previously Amends Approved 

Original Approved Approved Amended 

Budget Amends this Res Budget 

Estimated June 30, 2022 FB 12,651,864 
Less Restricted, Committed & Assigned 698,781 
Est. Avail . Fund Balance July 1, 2022 11,953,083 

Total Revenue & Transfers In 21,482,426 750,259 5,000 22,237,685 

Total Available Funds 33,435,509 750,259 5,000 34,190,768 

Total Expenditures & Transfers Out 23,970,761 645,303 100,000 24,716,064 

Effect on Fund Balance (2,488,335) 104,956 (95,000) (2,478,379) 

Ending Fund Balance 9,464,748 104,956 (95,000) 9,474,704 

[SEE ATTACHED EXHIBIT __ DETAILED SPREADSHEET) 

BE IT Fl NALLY RESOLVED, that this resolution take effect immediately and is spread upon the 

minutes of Loudon County Commission meeting in regular session on 

April 3, 2023 

Loudon County Commission Chair 

ATTEST: 

Loudon County Clerk 

Loudon County Mayor 



RESOLUTION# 

A RESOULTION AMENDING THE DRUG CONTROL FUND 122 

TO MORE ACCURATELY REFLECT ANTICIPATED REVENUES AND EXPENDITURES 
FOR THE FISCAL YEAR BEGINNING JULY 1, 2022 AND ENDING JUNE 30, 2023 

WHEREAS, Loudon County Commission adopted the 2022- 2023 budget that included the Drug 

Control Fund 122 on June 27, 2022; and 

WHEREAS, amendments in the revenue and/or expense budgets are now recommended to more 

accurately reflect anticipated and/or known revenues and expenditures for the current fiscal year; and 

WHEREAS, sources of revenue for the amendments in revenue budgets include Fines, Forfeitures and 

Penalties, as well as Contributions; and 

WHEREAS, amendments in the expense budgets will appropriate funds for expenditures that were 

unknown at the time of the original FY 2022 - 2023 budget adoption; and 

WHEREAS, funds for amendments in the expense budgets that do not have a direct revenue stream 

will be provided for from the available fund balance; and 

WHEREAS, the estimated Beginning Fund Balance will be updated to reflect the Year End Report 

(unaudited estimates) or audit (if available); thereby a more accurate budget. 

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED, that the FY 2022 - 2023 County General Fund 101 has been 

amended by Loudon County Commission . 

BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED, that the projected fund balance at fiscal year-end has been adjusted and is 

summarized as follows: 

Previously Amends Approved 

Original Approved Approved Amended 

Budget Amends this Res Budget 

Estimated June 30, 2022 FB 93,645 
Less Restricted, Committed & Assigned 0 
Est. Avail. Fund Balance July 1, 2022 93,645 

Total Revenue & Transfers In 83,500 0 33,000 116,500 

Total Available Funds 83,500 0 33,000 116,500 

Total Expenditures & Transfers Out 101,500 29,412 4,000 134,912 

Effect on Fund Balance (18,000) (29,412) 29,000 (18,412) 

Ending Fund Balance 75,645 (29,412 ) 29,000 75,233 

[SEE ATTACHED EXHIBIT __ DETAILED SPREADSHEET] 

BE IT FINALLY RESOLVED, that this resolution take effect immediately and is spread upon the 

minutes of Loudon County Commission meeting in regular session on 

April 3, 2023 

Loudon County Commission Chair 

ATTEST: 

Loudon County Clerk 

Loudon County Mayor 



RESOLUTION# 

A RESOULTION AMENDING THE OTHER GENERAL SPECIAL REVENUE FUND 127 (ARPA) 

TO MORE ACCURATELY REFLECT ANTICIPATED REVENUES AND EXPENDITURES 

FOR THE FISCAL YEAR BEGINNING JULY 1, 2022 AND ENDING JUNE 30, 2023 

WHEREAS, Loudon County Commission adopted the 2022 - 2023 budget that included the Other 

General Special Revenue Fund 127 on June 27, 2022; and 

WHEREAS, amendments in the revenue and/or expense budgets are now recommended to more 

accurately reflect anticipated and/or known revenues and expenditures for the current fiscal year; and 

WHEREAS, sources of revenue for the amendments in revenue budgets are Federal funds or 

Investment Income; and 

WHEREAS, amendments in the expense budgets will appropriate funds for expenditures that were 

unknown at the time of the original FY 2022 - 2023 budget adoption; and 

WHEREAS, funds for amendments in the expense budgets that do not have a direct revenue stream 

will be provided for from the available fund balance; and 

WHEREAS, the estimated Beginning Fund Balance will be updated to reflect the Year End Report 

(unaudited estimates) or audit (if available); thereby a more accurate budget. 

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED, that the FY 2022 - 2023 Other General Government Special 

Revenue Fund 127 has been amended by Loudon County Commission. 

BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED, that the projected fund balance at fiscal year-end has been adjusted and is 

summarized as follows: 

Original 

Budget 

Estimated June 30, 2022 FB 5,257,543 

Less Restricted, Committed & Assigned 0 

Est. Avail. Fund Balance July 1, 2022 5,257,543 

Total Revenue & Transfers In 5,235,119 

Total Available Funds 5,235,119 

Total Expenditures & Transfers Out 0 

Effect on Fund Balance 5,235,119 

Ending Fund Balance 10,492,662 

Previously 

Approved 

Amends 

15,918 

15,918 

9,969,532 

(9,953,614) 

(9,953,614) 

Amends 

Approved 

this Res 

30,000 

30,000 

0 

30,000 

30,000 

Approved 

Amended 

Budget 

5,281,037 

5,281,037 

9,969,532 

(4,688,495) 

569,048 

[SEE ATTACHED EXHIBIT __ DETAILED SPREADSHEET] 

BE IT FINALLY RESOLVED, that this resolution take effect immediately and is spread upon the 

minutes of Loudon County Commission meeting in regular session on 

April 3, 2023 

Loudon County Commission Chair 

ATTEST: 

Loudon County Clerk 

Loudon County Mayor 



RESOLUTION # 

A RESOULTION AMENDING THE HIGHWAY DEPARTMENTFUND 131 

TO MORE ACCURATELY REFLECT ANTICIPATED REVENUES AND EXPENDITURES 
FOR THE FISCAL YEAR BEGINNING JULY 1, 2022 AND ENDING JUNE 30, 2023 

WHEREAS, Loudon County Commission adopted the 2022 - 2023 budget that included the Highway 

Department Fund 131 on June 27, 2022; and 

WHEREAS, amendments in the revenue and/or expense budgets are now recommended to more 

accurately reflect anticipated and/or known revenues and expenditures for the current fiscal year; and 

WHEREAS, sources of revenue for the amendments in revenue budgets are Local, State or Federal 

funds; or Transfers In; and 

WHEREAS, amendments in the expense budgets will appropriate funds for expenditures that were 

unknown at the time of the original FY 2022 - 2023 budget adoption; and 

WHEREAS, funds for amendments in the expense budgets that do not have a direct revenue stream 

will be provided for from the available fund balance; and 

WHEREAS, the estimated Beginning Fund Balance will be updated to reflect the Year End Report 

(unaudited estimates) or audit (if available); thereby a more accurate budget. 

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED, that the FY 2022 - 2023 Highway Department Fund 131 has been 

amended by Loudon County Commission. 

BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED, that the projected fund balance at fiscal year-end has been adjusted and is 

summarized as follows: 

Previously Amends Approved 

Original Approved Approved Amended 

Budget Amends this Res Budget 

Estimated June 30, 2022 FB 1,005,355 
Less Restricted, Committed & Assigned 319,211 
Est. Avail . Fund Balance July 1, 2022 686,144 

Total Revenue & Transfers In 4,069,590 46,217 0 4,115,807 

Total Available Funds 4,755,734 46,217 0 4,801,951 

Total Expenditures & Transfers Out 3,931,980 71,217 0 4,003,197 

Effect on Fund Balance 137,610 (25,000) a 112,610 

Ending Fund Balance 823,754 (25,000) 0 798,754 

[SEE ATTACHED EXHIBIT __ DETAILED SPREADSHEET] 

BE IT F/NALL Y RESOLVED, that this resolution take effect immediately and is spread upon the 

minutes of Loudon County Commission meeting in regular session on 

April 3, 2023 

Loudon County Commission Chair 

ATTEST: 

Loudon County Clerk 

Loudon County Mayor 



RESOLUTION # 

A RESOULTION AMENDING THE GENERAL CAPITAL PROJECTS FUND 171 

TO MORE ACCURATELY REFLECT ANTICIPATED REVENUES AND EXPENDITURES 

FOR THE FISCAL YEAR BEGINNING JULY 1, 2022 AND ENDING JUNE 30, 2023 

WHEREAS, Loudon County Commission adopted the 2022 - 2023 budget that included the County 

General Fund 101 on June 27, 2022; and 

WHEREAS, amendments in the revenue and/or expense budgets are now recommended to more 
accurately reflect anticipated and/or known revenues and expenditures for the current fiscal year; and 

WHEREAS, sources of revenue for the amendments in revenue budgets include Local Revenues; as 

well as Other Sources; and 

WHEREAS, amendments in the expense budgets will appropriate funds for expenditures that were 

unknown at the time of the original FY 2022 - 2023 budget adoption; and 

WHEREAS, funds for amendments in the expense budgets that do not have a direct revenue stream 

will be provided for from the available fund balance; and 

WHEREAS, the estimated Beginning Fund Balance will be updated to reflect the Year End Report 

(una\,Jdited estimates) or audit (if available); thereby a more accurate budget. 

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED, that the FY 2022 - 2023 General Capital Projects Fund 171 has 

been amended by Loudon County Commission . 

BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED, that the projected fund balance at fiscal year-end has been adjusted and is 

summarized as follows: 

Previously Amends Approved 
Original Approved Approved Amended 
Budget Amends this Res Budget 

Unaudited June 30, 2022 FB 7,286,677 
Less Unaudited Enc (4,451,734) 

Available Fund Balance July 1, 2022 2,834,943 

Total Revenue & Transfers In 124,510 669,403 584,615 1,378,528 

Total Available Funds 2,959,453 669,403 584,615 4,213,471 

Total Expe nditures & Transfers Out 699,616 986,883 284,279 1,970,778 

Effect on Fund Balance (575,106) (317,480) 300,336 (592,250) 

Ending Fund Balance 2,259,837 (3 17,480) 300,336 2,242,693 

[SEE ATTACHED EXHIBIT __ DETAILED SPREADSHEET) 

BE IT FINALLY RESOLVED, that this resolution take effect immediately and is spread upon the 

minutes of Loudon County Commission meeting in regular session on 

April 3, 2023 

Loudon County Commission Chair 

ATTEST: 

Loudon County Clerk 

Loudon County Mayor 



LoCAdovi GoCAVJty Govnvnissiovi 

April 3, 2.02.3 

Pistrikn-1tiovi of VV\ovitvily:Reports 

1?v1d0et toVl'lVYlittee VV\eetiVJC) - J,:;;iVJv1,:;;iry 1 r, 2.02. 3 

13v1d0et C◊Vl'lVl'littee VV\e,etiVJC) - febrn,:;;iry 2.1, 2.02.3 



Loudon County Budget Committee 
Meeting Minutes 

January 17, 2023 

COMMITTEE MEMBERS: 
Mayor Rollen "Buddy" Bradshaw, Chair 
Commissioner Henry Cullen, Vice Chair 

Commissioner Bill Satterfield 
Commissioner Van Shaver 

Commissioner Gary Whitfield 
Tracy Blair, Budget Director 

Erin Rice, Interim Budget Director 

Budget Committee present: Mayor Bradshaw, Commissioner Cullen, Commissioner Satterfield, Commissioner 
Shaver, Commissioner Whitfield, Budget Director Tracy Blair, and Interim Budget Director Erin Rice. The 
following were also present: Commissioner Rosemary Quillen, Cumberland Securities Scott Gibson, Director 
of Schools Mike Garren, Matt Tinker, Property Assessor Mike Campbell, Sheriff Jimmy Davis, and Pat Hunter. 

The following items were considered: 

Cons;deration of approval of m;nutes of November 21, 2022 meeting: 
Commissioner Shaver made a motion to approve the minutes; seconded by Commissioner Satterfield; 
PASSING UNANIMOUSLY upon the vote. 

Cons;deration of recommendation to approve two resolutions to terminate LIBOR Based Interest Rate 
· SWAP: 
Scott Gibson, Cumberland Securities explained the SWAP is based on LIBOR (London Inter-Bank Offered Rate) 
index. LIBOR is being phased out of existence on June 30, 2023 and replaced with a new index. LIBOR has 
been around for decades; the regulators want to get rid of it because it's been manipulated. Termination of 
the swap will cost approximately $40,000 currently, however, this amount can fluctuate between now and 
the termination. Mr. Gibson explained that the fee is not expected to rise above this cost, but if the County 
chooses to move to the new index that will replace the SWAP, it could potentially be a much higher amount 
overall. The 2nd resolution is to redo the E-3-C Loan to remove the LIBOR reference. 

Commissioner Shaver made the motion to approve the two resolutions to terminate the SWAP and redo the 
loan to remove the LIBOR reference. The motion was seconded by Commissioner Satterfield. The motion 
PASSED UNANIMOUSLY upon the vote. 

mscussion: BOE school building program 
Director of Schools Mike Garren informed the committee that there will be a need for additional funding in 
the near future; currently, the amount is $500,000 (-$350,000 more for new school @ Simpson Road and 
$150,000 for Philadelphia and Greenback). Mr. Garren explained the additional projects are schematic 
design for Philadelphia School and Greenback School, also additional funding needed for the new school at 
Simpson Road for preliminary design. There is also work being done at the CTE building at Loudon High 
School (design is complete). Mr. Garren mentioned that COPE is the Architect. Mr. Garren noted that he 
wanted to clarify the projects that would use a portion of the recently obtained $2.6M Capital Outlay Note. 

l l/ 



Consideration of request for job classifkation ft wage adjustment: 
Property Assessor Mike Campbell requested a $1 .00/hour increase to one of his staff members. Mr. 
Campbell explained that the employee has been with his office 4 ½ years. She does $139 million in 
assessments and is a very valuable part of his office. Her position takes a long time to train. Mr. Campbell 
went on to explain that a high volume of Real Property Assessments has been added to her duties since 
spring. Commissioner Shaver mentioned that this request was brought up recently and that salary 
adjustments need to be added to the next budget cycle. Commissioner Cullen asked Mr. Campbell, what 
affect does this have on your employee if she waits 5 months for the next budget cycle? Mr. Campbell 
explained this is difficult to keep her moving forward with additional work because the wages were not 
brought back up (in last budget cycle). It is performance punishment. Mr. Campbell went on to explain that 
she was at 15.48/hour and then went to 16.00/hour in October 2021. Mr. Campbell would like to take her 
to $17. 51 /hour (1. 51 /hour increase), same as a field appraiser. 

Mayor Bradshaw made a motion to approve ($3,121 annual increase). 

Commissioner Whitfield asked Mr. Campbell what effect does this have on your employee if this increase is 
delayed? Mr. Campbell explained that it is difficult for her when she didn't receive the increase during the 
previous budget cycle but she's working a greater load than a new person off the street that comes in 
making the same hourly rate as her, $16.00/hour. Commissioner Satterfield asked what's the highest paid 
in your office at this position? Mr. Campbell responded Kay Arp@ 20.49/hour. 

Commissioner Satterfield seconded the motion. The motion was withdrawn for further discussion. 

Budget Committee began a discussion about the need to address wage differences during the upcoming 
budgeting cycle for FY 2024. 

Commissioner Shaver asked Mayor, what are you going to ask for? Mayor mentioned that he is requesting 
. Matt Kleinschmidt to go to $57,000 to be more in line with other directors in the count, Brandon Bunn to 
receive an additional 0.30/hour increase, Jennifer Costner to receive 0.20/hour increase, and Teresa 
Everett to receive 1.00/hour increase due to her experience. Mayor would like these to be effective 
January 1st• 

Commissioner Satterfield asked Mr. Campbell, if you fill your open positions, will Ariel ' s job responsibilities 
decrease? Mr. Campbell stated that Ariel will do the training . Mr. Campbell went on to mention that the 
county gets money back from his department@ the end of each year, unspent in his budget. Sheriff Davis 
stated that Mike's employee makes the same hourly rate as his janitor. Mr. Campbell then said, and she's 
bringing in $2.3 million in revenue. Commissioner Shaver then stated that there will be more requests (for 
increases). Commissioner Cullen noted that he believes we are headed for a rough budget cycle due to the 
constraints of the economy. Ms. Rice indicated that no amendment is needed in the current year due to the 
two open positions in this budget. 

Commissioner Satterfield made a motion to approve the increase using funds available in the current 
budget; the motion was seconded by Commissioner Cullen. The motion PASSED upon the vote. Two voted 
NO-Commissioner Whitfield and Commissioner Shaver. 

Consideration of request for funding from Jail Bond for door entry key cards: 
Sheriff Davis explained the need for door entry key cards to replace the Yale keys for doors in the Jail. 
Sheriff Davis explained that the keys are currently yale locks and since the closure of the Yale Company, the 
department is running low on keys to give to appropriate staff for entry. Sheriff Davis explained that when 
the department runs out of these keys, there will be a need to redo the locks to get keys that are available 
for future staff. Commissioner Shaver inquired as to why the department was running low. Sheriff Davis 
explained that some keys are wearing out and there have been some keys lost with the change over in staff. 
The key cards will help to alleviate these issues. Sheriff Davis has received two quotes: $63,000 for 1/:i. the 
doors from the vendor Johnson Controls and $.32,000 for all doors from the vendor Lock Medic. 

Budget Committee discussed the funding source to come from ARPA funds. 



Commissioner Whitfield made the motion to approve the key cards from ARPA funding. The motion was 
seconded by Commissioner Shaver and PASSED UNANIMOUSLY upon the vote. 

Later at Commission Workshop, Commissioner Shaver noted that it would be better for this expense to come 
from the Jail Bond since we have already drawn down the remaining amount of this bond and we are already 
making payments on this money, which includes interest on the funds received from that bond. 

Consideration of request to accept and expense funds received from the Federal Marshall Round-up: 

Sheriff Davis explained that Loudon County Sheriff's Department will receive approximately $6,500 in funds 
from the Federal Marshall due to our assistance provided for sex offender roundup. The round up will take 
place over the next two days. 

Commissioner Shaver made the motion to approve the receiving/expensing of these funds. This motion was 
seconded by Commissioner Cullen and PASSED UNANIMOUSLY upon the vote. 

Discussion: TDEC ARPA Greenback Sewer Project matching funds 

Ms. Rice explained that the TDEC ARPA funding for the Greenback Sewer Project has a matching funds 
requirement of 35% with an estimated amount of $670,000. The TASS CFO has indicated that they hoped 
that Loudon County would provide this match. 

Commissioner Satterfield explained this project currently has - 70 homes signed up for the service. If the 
homeowners sign up now, they pay 50% of the hook up vs if they sign up for the service later, it will cost 
100% of the hook up. 

Commissioner Satterfield explained that he anticipates that there will be funds left over from his allotment 
of the County's ARPA funds that are going towards the Greenback Water Project due to the current 
participation rate of residents being lower than expected, which could potentially cause the water project 
to cost less. Commissioner Satterfield went on to explain that if TASS does not need all of the money 
allocated for the water project, then the funds can be reallocated towards the match needed for the sewer 
project. 

Consideration of recommendation to approve application/acceptance of $465,500 State Department 
of Health Grant: 

Ms. Rice explained that this approval is to follow our grant process. 

Commissioner Shaver made a motion to approve application/acceptance of the grant, seconded by 
Commissioner Cullen; PASSING UNANIMOUSLY upon the vote. 

Consideration of recommendation to approve the Resolution to purchase the BBEtT building from 
ARPA: 

Commissioner Shaver made a motion to approve the resolution for the purchase of the BB&T building, 
seconded by Commissioner Whitfield; PASSING UNANIMOUSLY upon the vote. 

Consideration of recommendation regarding the rh District ARPA funds; $175,000 to TV flre 
Department by Commissioner Cullen: 

Commissioner Satterfield made a motion to approve the appropriation to TV Fire Department from the 
allotment of Commissioner Cullen's ARPA funds, seconded by Commissioner Shaver; PASSING UNANIMOUSLY 
upon the vote. 

[3 I 



Consideration of request to amend the Policy and Procedures Handbook by increasing Travel Expense 
Reimbursement Section 6.18: 

Mayor Bradshaw explained that he recommends for the reimbursement amount to increase from $46.00/day. 
The Budget Committee discussed the reimbursement rate in other parts of the state. The Budget 
Committee discussed changing the rate for Loudon County to the amount reimbursed at the state rate. Ms. 
Blair reminded the committee that there is a resolution currently in place to match the mileage 
reimbursement rate to the state rate, thereby adjusting the county reimbursement rate automatically to 
match the state mileage reimbursement rate. 

Commissioner Satterfield made a motion to approve a resolution that dictates for the county's travel 
reimbursement rate to match the state's reimbursement rate. This motion was seconded by Commissioner 
Cullen and PASSED UNANIMOUSLY upon the vote. 

Consideration of recommendation to approve the bond for the new Purchasing/Procurement Director: 

Commissioner Shaver inquired about whether the bond was still active for the previous director. Mayor 
Bradshaw informed the committee that the bond for the former director would need to stay in place until 
the bond for the new director is active. 

Commissioner Shaver made the motion to approve the bond for the new director with the understanding 
that the former directors' bond would need to be terminated. This motion was seconded by Commissioner 
Cullen and PASSED UNANIMOUSLY upon the vote. 

Discussion: Career Center loss of revenue 

Ms. Rice informed the committee that due to ETHRA ending the lease agreement with the county, we 
currently have a loss in revenue of -$24,000; the county stands to receive $24,000 in lease payments from 
Roane State for FYE 2023 and pay -$49,000 in utilities for FYE 2023 for the building, and since Fund 101 has 
been covering the expenses, Fund 357 owes Fund 101 $20,500. All of these issues could cause the county to 
have a shortfall of -$45,500. Mayor Bradshaw informed the committee that the Health Department 
employees would be moving into the space currently, until the Health Department damage can be fixed. 
Mayor Bradshaw also informed the committee that he will work on getting FSA to move into the building and 
begin leasing the space. FSA was recently kicked out in Roane County. Mayor Bradshaw stated that he 
would work on getting FSA to move into our building to help replenish the lease payments to the county. 

Discussion: $101000 contribution to the Library Board; book lease program 

Ms. Rice informed the committee that the Library Board uses the $10,000 yearly contribution from the 
county to fund a book lease program each year. The invoices for this program for the current year have 
been forwarded from the Library Board and they exceed the $10,000 contribution amount by $760.00. The 
Library Board was hopeful that the county would pick up the excess cost for the program. Ms. Rice 
reminded the committee that when the finances of the Library Board transferred to the county, the cash in 
their fund was distributed among the libraries to provide operating fund balances at each library for their 
discretion. 

Mayor Bradshaw reminded the committee that if they were to appropriate additional funds to the libraries 
for this purpose, MOE may also be increased for the next FY. 

The motion was made by Commissioner Shaver to expense the additional amount needed for the lease 
program from the sub funds of the individual libraries. The motion was seconded by Commissioner Cullen. 
The motion PASSED UNANIMOUSLY upon the vote. 

/4} 



Consjderation of recommendation to approve line adjustments and recommend approval of 
amendments in the following funds: 

Ms. Blair distributed spreadsheets. Ms. Rice reviewed amendments in all funds. 

A. County General Fund 101 
Motion to approve by Commissioner Shaver; seconded by Commissioner Satterfield; PASSED 
UNANIMOUSLY. . 

B. Public Libraries Fund 115 
Motion to approve by Commissioner Shaver; seconded by Commissioner Satterfield; PASSED 
UNANIMOUSLY. 

C. Special Revenue Fund 127 (ARPA) 
Motion to approve by Commissioner Whitfield; seconded by Commissioner Shaver; PASSED 
UNANIMOUSLY. 

D. Highway Department Fund 131 
Motion to approve by Commissioner Shaver; seconded by Commissioner Whitfield; PASSED 
UNANIMOUSLY. 

E. Highway Capital Projects Fund 176 
Motion to approve by Commissioner Shaver; seconded by Commissioner Cullen; PASSED 
UNANIMOUSLY. 

Discussion: FY 2023-2024 Budget Prep 

Ms. Rice informed the committee that the budget request packets have been distributed to the appropriate 
departments. She also informed the committee that she would like to follow the same format for the 
budget prep meetings as were done in the previous year: three meetings a week, Monday, Wednesday, 
Friday beginning at 1 O:OOam in mid to late March. 

Recommendations from Capital Projects Committee: 

There was a recommendation, by committee chair, Commissioner Quillen, to fund the following projects: 

A. Annex WIFI switches upgrade project. The cost is approximately $15,800. Motion to approve from 
Capital Projects Fund from $200K by Commissioner Shaver; seconded by Commissioner Cullen; 
PASSED UNANIMOUSLY. 

B. Storage shelves@ the newly acquired building (BB&T) for Steve Harrelson. The Capital Projects 
Committee asked for this funding to come from ARPA. The cost is approximately $65,000. Motion to 
approve from ARPA funds by Commissioner Shaver; seconded by Commissioner Whitfield; PASSED 
UNANIMOUSLY. 

The project at the Sr. Center for erosion update will cost approximately $150,000. The Capital Projects 
Committee thought this could possibly be funded from the County's ARPA money. This recommendation was 
tabled to allow the members of the commission opportunity to go to the Sr. Center to view the work 
needed. Motion to table by Commissioner Shaver; seconded by Commissioner Whitfield; PASSED 
UNANIMOUSLY. 

/5/ 



Commissioner Satterfield made a motion to request a 30 day moratorium on any more ARPA appropriations; 
seconded by Commissioner Shaver; PASSED UNANIMOUSLY. 

Sheriff Davis mentioned that there will be a memorial for Deputy Chris Jenkins on February 3, 2023 at 8:00 
am. 

All business concluded, Commissioner Shaver made a motion to adjourn the meeting, and Commissioner 
Satterfield seconded the motion. 

Mayo1r--+~fPTl "Buddy" Bradshaw 
Budget Committee Chair 

/6/ 



Loudon County Budget Committee 
Meeting Minutes 
February 21,, 2023 

COMMITTEE MEMBERS: 
Mayor Rollen "Buddy" Bradshaw, Chair 
Commissioner Henry Cullen, Vice Chair 

Commissioner Bill Satterfield 
Commissioner Gary Whitfield 

Commissioner Van Shaver 
Tracy Blair, Budget Director 

All members of the Budget Committee were present. Pat Hunter and Sarah Thomason were also in 
attendance. 

The foliowing items were considered: 

Consideration of approval of minutes cf January 17, 2023 meeting 
Commissioner Shaver made a moti.on to approve the minutes, seconded by Commi!;sioner Satterfield; 
PASSING UNANIMOUSLY upon thevote. 

Discussion: FY 2023 EDA contribution invoices 
Ms. Blair explained that EDA invoices the county quarterly and FY 2023 invoices received to date are 
25% of the amou.nt EDA requested ($177,J.74) rather than 25% of the amount approved ($169,860). The 
discussion included comments about the lnterlocal Agreement, ideas for more equitabldunding, anrl 
consideration of sending a letter to EDA requesting revised invoices for the remainder of this fiscal year. 
The discussion concluded with a motion to TABLE by Commissioner Whitfield, seconded by 
Commissioner Cullen. The motion PASSED upon the vote; 4 AYES, 1 NAY [Shaver]. 

Consideration of recommendation regarding 1st District Seat A, ARPA funds-· Commissioner Chase 
Randolph 

a. $375,000 for paving of county roads 
b. $10,000 contribution toD,.mbar Rosenwald Foundation, Inc. 
c. $5,000 contribution to l(iwm'iis CJub·oJ Tellico Village 

· d. $10,000 contribution toj_oudon County Sheriff's Department Benevolent Fund 
e. $50,000 co.ntribr;tion to Tetlico Village Fire Deportment for new breathing appr1ratuses 
f, · $20,000 for capital pro,iecr-- eras-ion at the Sr. Center 

Loudon Countv Budget Committee l'vlinutes 21FEBRUII.RY20:i3 



Consideration of recommendation regarding 1st District Seat B, ARPA funds - Commissioner Bill 
Geames 

.. 
a. $375,000 for paving of couqty. roads 
b. $10,000 contribution to Du,:iba.r Rosenwald Foun~ation, Inc. 
c. $5,000 contribution_ to J(iwanis Club of Tellico Village 
d. -~10,000 contribution to lo_udon County Sheriffs Department Benevolent Fund 
e. $50,000 contribution to Tellico Village Fire Department for new breathing apparatuses 
f. $20,000 for capital project - erosion at the Sr. Center 

Motion by Commissioner Shaver, second by Commissioner Whitfield to recommend approval of ARPA 
funding requests presented on behalf of Commissioner Randolph and Commissioner Geames. The 
motion PASSED UNANIMOUSLY upon the vote. 

Consideration of request to amend thePolicy and Procedure Handbook- Milftary leave Section 5;13- · 

- Sheriff Jimmy Davis 
Sheriff Davis was not present. Ms. Blair explained tllat the county's military leave policy grants a 
maximum of twenty (20) pa id working days for military duty or training in any one-year period, in 
accordance with state and federal law. Sheriff Davis would like the county to consider additional paid 
day'.; fo r employees on military leave, which will relieve these employees for utilizing paid -annual days 
for those who have assignments that exceed twenty days. After a brief discussiori, the Budget . 
Committee determined to consider this item on next month's agenda . NO ACTION TAKEN 

: :_ w Con.sideration of recommendation regarding 7th District ARPA funds - Commissioner Henry Cullen _ 

· - li .· a. $20,000 contribution to Tellico Reservoir Development Agency 
, ( - b. $70,000 contribution_ to Friends of Tellico Village .Library 

Motion by Commissioner Shaver, second by Commissioner Whitfield to recommend approval of ARPA 
funding as requested by Commissioner Cullen. The motion PASSED UNANIMOUSLY upon the vote. 

Consideration of recommendation regarding 4th district ARPA funds - Commissioner Gary Whitfield 

$20,000 contribution to Phiiadelphia Fire Department/or turnout gear 

Motion by Commissioner Cullen; second by Commissioner Satterfield to rec_ommend approval of ARP/\ 
funding a, r equested by Corn missioner Wtiitfield . Tile motion PASSED UNANIMOUS/. Y upon the vote. 

Loudon County Budget Committee Minutes 2JFEBHUARY2023 

• i; • I 



I -i~~.~ 
. ;p;i: 

,,1,.t . 
: i+ 

Consideration of recommendation to amend Resolution #110722-GG to reduce the amount to TASS by 
$180,000 from 3rd District ARPA funds - Commissioner Bill Satterfield 
Commissioner Satterfield requested a $180,000 reduction in the ARPA funds assigned to the Third 
District for the construction of the Jackson Ferry Water Pump/Booster Stations, from $500,000 to 
$320,000. Commissioner.Satterfield further stated the intent to utilize the $180,000 to provide a 
portion of the required 35% match on the TD EC .ARPA grant for the Greenback sewer project. 

Ms. Blair informed the Committee that TASS has indicated a total of $1,028,000 is needed for the water 
project, adding that a $180,000 reduction to the total amount of $1,202,075 approved for the projects 
via Resolution #110722-GG would be approximately $6,000 short of the amount requested by TASS. 
Commissioner Satterfield restated the request to reduce the amount by $180,000, adding that TASS can 
provide the difference. 

Commissioner Whitfield made the motion to recommend approval of the request. This motion was 
seconded by Commissioner Satterfield, and PASSED UNANIMOUSLY upon the vote. 

Consideration of recommendation to approve $200,000 from the County ARPA standard allowance for 
the 35% required match for the TDEC ARPA grant for Greenback Sewer Project - Commissioner Bill 
Satterfield 
Commissioner Satterfield expressed regret for requesting appropriation of the entire Third District 
$500,000 ARPA funds on the Jackson Ferr{ Water Pump/Booster Station and the match on the TDEC 
ARPA grant for Greenback Sr::wer Project Both projects will be constructed by and. maintained by TASS, · 
and since Loudon County is partial owner of the utility district, Commissioner Satterfield prefers funding 
with county funds rather .than Third D.istrict ARPA funds. 

Commissioner Shaver agreed, adding that Loudon County has already committed $750,000 of County 
ARPA funds to TASS for the water project. ·other mernbers of the Budget Committee agreed. There was 
a brief discussion to rescind F:esolution #110-/.22-GG, thereby allowing Commissioner Satterfield to re
appropriate the $500,000 AR?A funds assigned to the Third District. There was no action on this 
suggestion. 

Motion by Commissioner Whitfield to reconsider items #8 and #9 on the agenda. 

Agenda Item #8 
Consideration of recommendation to amend Resolution #110722-GG to reduce the amount to TASS by 
$180,000 from 3rd District ARPA funds - Commissioner Bill Satterfield 

Agenda Item #9 
Consideration of recommendation to approve $100,000 from the County ARPA standard allowance for 
the 35% required match for the TDEC ARPA grant/or Greenback Sewer Project- Commissioner-Bill . 

Satte,1ielcl 

This motion was seconded·ti'/ Commissioner Shavei· and PASSED UNANIMOUSLY upon the vote. 

Loudon County Budget Comrrij~tee Minutes 21FEBRUARY2023 



; ,. j 

l. 

Motion by Commissioner Whitfield to TA_BLE items #8 and #9 on the agenda. 

Agenda Item #8 

Consider_ation of recommendation to amend Resolution #110722-GG to redu_ce the amount to TASS by 
$180,000 from 3rd District ARPA funds - Commissioner Bill Satterfield 

Agenda Item #9 

Consideration of recommendation to approve $200,000 from the County ARPA standard allowance for 
the 35% required match for t·he TDEC ARPA grant for Greenback Sewer Project - Commissioner Bill 
Satterfield 

This motion was seconded by Commissioner Shaver and PASSED UNANIMOUSLY upon the vote. 

Consideration of approval of line adjustments and/or recommendation to approve amendments in the 
following funds: 

A. County General Fund 101 

B. Special Revenue Fund 127 -ARPA 

C. Highway Department Fund 131 

D . . General Purpose School Fund 141. 

E. School Federal Projects Fund 142 

F. · _School Federal Projer.ts Fund143 

G~ -General Capital Projects Fund 171 

Commissioner Shaver made the motion to appro•1e all amendments in all funds. This motion 
was seconded by Commissioner Cullen and PASSED UNANIMOUSLY upon the vote. 

All business concluded, Commissioner Shaver made the motion to adjourn; seconded by Commissioner 
Cullen. Thereupon, Mayor Bradshaw adjourned the meeting. 

Budget Committee Chair 

Loudon County Budget Committee Minute-s 21FEBRUARY2023 



Lovtdovi Covtvity CoW\W\issiovi 

April 3, 2.02.3 

Colrol 1). AVJthoVJI{, '/Vette K. Arnold, K~tvll{ E. fiVJ1:,er, Ch~rles A, +/~le, W\~li~ l)ioVJVJe +/odt3e, 
'RhoVJd~ Gi~il KVJittel, W\eliss~ A. L~wsovi, r'~t-11 C. W\iVJ0ee III, Kristivi~ f. W\ivit3ee,~-tvl €l~ivie Wlil'lor, 

'Mist W\il'ltoVJ, J~I{ W. 'Morello 



LOUDON COUNTY CLERK 
RILEY WAMPLER COUNTY CLERK 

101 MULBERRY ST STE 200 
LOUDON TN 37774 

Telephone 865-458-3314 
Fax 865-458-9891 

Notaries to be elected April 03,2023 

CAROL D ANTHONY 
YVETTE K ARNOLD 
KATHYE FINGER 
CHARLES A HALE 
MALIA DIONNE HODGE 
RHONDA GAIL KNITTEL 

MELISSA A. LAWSON 
PAUL C MINGEE Ill 
KRISTINA F MINGEE 
RUTH ELAINE MINOR 
MISTY MINTON 
JAY W MORELLO 


	doc11414520230331082822
	doc11414620230331082907

